
Page 1 of 3

Clear Creek County Library District Board of Trustees
MINUTES

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 13, 2016

Mission Statement:
The Clear Creek County Library District will be a centerpiece of our community, providing public
library services that enhance our community through shared collections, cultural events and activities,
the preservation and sharing of our county’s rich historical past, access to current and emerging
technologies, and service to our democracy through the free flow of information.

I. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by Lee Ann Cox, President, pro tem at 6:05 p.m.
Attending: Lee Ann Cox

Gwynn Ellen Stephenson
Judy Caldwell
Elaine McWain
Kate Foy
Vicki Colle

Guests: Sue Lathrop, District Director
Libby Caplan, Georgetown Branch Librarian

II. Approval of Agenda
The agenda was approved as presented.

III. Approval of Minutes
The minutes of the last meeting were approved with one amendment.

IV. Audience Business
No public comment/audience business was presented.

V.        Report from Auditor Jack Salewski
The Library is in good financial shape.  Assets have increased.  It has a healthy fund balance.  A
normal heathy balance allows for four to five months’ operating budget.  The Library District
currently has a 1 and ½ year balance.

VI. Library Director Report

Sue reimbursed her mistake on using the company credit card. She also fixed the payroll line
item. She reported that the MSEC line was correct. It is over budget because we had not
planned on so much HR stuff, such as the MSEC Report. It will continue to go over with the
Compensation Review. However, we are still good because we have a lot of room in consulting
and legal and professional fees.

She had a great suggestion from the staff is to have some of the regular bills – such as Ingrams,
or the phone and cable bills on autopay for the credit card. This will give us extra reward points,
which we can spend on programs. The Board agreed to that.

Movie night has been a big success in Georgetown .There were over 70 people at Teenage
Mutant Ninja Turtles. The next movie is Ghost Busters.



Page 2 of 3

Georgetown Library is in the process of getting bids for its roof project.

ISPL continuing to get nowhere with the stain problems at the ISPL, which we have been asking
them to fix since the renovation.

VII. Financial Report
Vouchers

The vouchers were reviewed as presented. Sue reported that she had ongoing expenses
transferred to automatic payments from the credit card.

2016 Budget Performance
The Budget Performance was approved as presented.

VIII. Old Business

Public Participation Policy
The Board and the Committee has reviewed the policy and it will be available for employee
input and released for public input.

Employee Insurance Benefits for 2017
The family plan will remain in place for at least one more year.  The mid-rate plan offered will

be adopted with PPO4, an EPO and PPO2 with a flat rate for employ contribution.  Employees may opt
for a higher plan, by paying the additional premium.

MSEC Report/Employ Handbook
No action was taken. A work session to review the suggested changes will be held on October

25, 2016.

Compensation Policy/Philosophy
Judy passed out the following paper for her recommended policy.

The primary purpose of the Clear Creek Library District is to serve our patrons, Community members
deserve a competent, professional, professional and consistent staff.  The District will pay fair and
adequate compensation to retain dedicated employees, recognizing that our staff is key to a successful
library district.  An employee’s pay should reflect the responsibilities of the job, the relevant experience
and/or education of the employ, and the length of employment by the Library District.  The Library
Director will review job descriptions annually to assure they match the actual job
practices/requirements; will update the market analysis every three years; and will recommend any
necessary changes in pay ranges to the District Board as needed.

IX. New Business

MSEC Compensation Review Results
The board will decided to vote on the recommendations at the next meeting. There is a current

vacancy for a Library Clerk.  The starting salary would be $12.21.

Budget The proposed 2017 budget was presented.

X.      Adjournment



Page 3 of 3

Lee Ann Cox adjourned the meeting of the Clear Creek County Library District Board of
Trustees at 8:50 p.m. to move to executive session pursuant to 24-6-402(4)(f), C.R.S. to discuss
personnel matters re: Libby Caplan.  No comments, questions or objections were made.  The
adjournment to Executive Session was approved unanimously.  No written minutes will be taken.

Lee Ann Cox adjourned to Executive Session to Discuss Personnel Matters re: Sue Lathrop
Discussion, according to 24-6-402(4)(f), C.R.S.8:50 pm

The Board adjourned from Executive Session at 9:40 p.m. and returned to their regular scheduled
meeting.

X. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 9:41 pm.

The next regular scheduled board meeting is December 6, 2016
at the Idaho Springs Public Library at 6:00 p.m.



 12:18 PM

 12/05/16

 Accrual Basis

 Clear Creek County Library District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2016

Nov 16 Jan - Nov 16 $ Over Budget % of Budget  Budget

Income

100 · Real Property Tax 0.00 1,172,775.84 -2,820.16 99.76% 1,175,596.00

110 · Delinquent Tax 0.00 99.52 99.52 100.0% 0.00

111 · Delinquent Interest 0.00 15.06 15.06 100.0% 0.00

120 · Specific Ownership Tax A 0.00 6,470.18 470.18 107.84% 6,000.00

130 · Specific Ownership Tax F 0.00 33,104.75 2,104.75 106.79% 31,000.00

140 · Interest Property Tax 0.00 580.53 -19.47 96.76% 600.00

150 · Interest Income 0.00 6,112.09 4,112.09 305.61% 2,000.00

160 · Grant Income 4,500.00 15,500.00 7,500.00 193.75% 8,000.00

165 · Program Income 0.00 331.86 131.86 165.93% 200.00

170 · Retirement Refunds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

180 · Other 0.00 1,409.96 1,409.96 100.0% 0.00

Total Income 4,500.00 1,236,399.79 13,003.79 101.06% 1,223,396.00

Expense

200 · Library District Administration

210 · Contingency 0.00 0.00 -50,000.00 0.0% 50,000.00

220 · Grants-Operating 0.00 11,886.20 11,886.20 100.0% 0.00

230 · Insurance 0.00 12,918.21 -2,081.79 86.12% 15,000.00

240 · Legal & Professional Dues/Fees

240.01 · Accounting & Audit 0.00 0.00 -5,200.00 0.0% 5,200.00

240.02 · Bank Fees (Bank Fees) 0.00 268.04 -731.96 26.8% 1,000.00

240.03 · Consulting 0.00 2,064.80 -17,935.20 10.32% 20,000.00

240.04 · Legal/Professional Fees 72.00 2,462.00 -32,538.00 7.03% 35,000.00

240.05 · MSEC (HR Services) 1,062.50 12,713.36 10,713.36 635.67% 2,000.00

240.06 · Payroll 90.00 2,280.00 -720.00 76.0% 3,000.00

240.07 · Special District Association 0.00 1,059.34 -440.66 70.62% 1,500.00

240.08 · Lyrasis 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

240 · Legal & Professional Dues/Fees - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 240 · Legal & Professional Dues/Fees 1,224.50 20,847.54 -46,852.46 30.79% 67,700.00

250 · Office Rental 1,500.00 16,500.00 -1,500.00 91.67% 18,000.00

260 · Salaries 17,184.63 371,557.69 -151,545.31 71.03% 523,103.00

270 · Benefits 1,098.27 102,436.84 -55,316.16 64.94% 157,753.00

280 · Treasurer's Fees 0.00 35,207.24 -1,792.76 95.16% 37,000.00

200 · Library District Administration - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 200 · Library District Administration 21,007.40 571,353.72 -297,202.28 65.78% 868,556.00

300 · District Programs

310 · Marketing

310.01 · Advertisements 44.11 632.70 -1,117.30 36.15% 1,750.00

310.02 · Legal Notices 11.88 0.44 -74.56 0.59% 75.00

310.03 · Marketing Supplies 0.00 0.00 -1,500.00 0.0% 1,500.00

310 · Marketing - Other 0.00 67.00

Total 310 · Marketing 55.99 700.14 -2,624.86 21.06% 3,325.00

320 · Newsletter

320.01 · Postage 47.00 916.91 -1,683.09 35.27% 2,600.00

 Page 1 of 5



 12:18 PM

 12/05/16

 Accrual Basis

 Clear Creek County Library District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2016

Nov 16 Jan - Nov 16 $ Over Budget % of Budget  Budget

320.02 · Printing Supplies 0.00 720.95 -1,279.05 36.05% 2,000.00

320 · Newsletter - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 320 · Newsletter 47.00 1,637.86 -2,962.14 35.61% 4,600.00

330 · Staff Development -10.64 4,254.39 -7,745.61 35.45% 12,000.00

340 · Programs

340.01 · District Programs (District-wide programs not covered by building budgets)

340.01a · After School 157.87 321.57

340.01b · Book Giveaways 0.00 0.00

340.01c · Book Groups 146.59 206.18

340.01d · Games Nights/Gaming 0.00 78.50

340.01e · Holiday Programs 265.21 1,633.61

340.01f · Movie Nights 69.85 340.77

340.01g · National Library Week 0.00 81.66

340.01h · Story Times 44.27 411.00

340.01i · Misc Kids 50.90 71.33

340.01j · Adult Craft 91.02 375.78

340.01k · Adult Educational 0.00 0.00

340.01L · Adult Misc. 0.00 116.74

340.01 · District Programs (District-wide programs not covered by building budgets) - Other0.00 30.58 -12,969.42 0.24% 13,000.00

Total 340.01 · District Programs (District-wide programs not covered by building budgets)825.71 3,667.72 -9,332.28 28.21% 13,000.00

340.02 · Summer Reading

340.02a · SRP Marketing 0.00 0.00

340.02b · SRP Party (End of Summer) 0.00 586.01

340.02c · SRP Prizes 0.00 564.61

340.02d · SRP Supplies 45.21 1,642.12

340.02e · SRP Teen 0.00 502.99

340.02 · Summer Reading - Other 0.00 26.56 -9,473.44 0.28% 9,500.00

Total 340.02 · Summer Reading 45.21 3,322.29 -6,177.71 34.97% 9,500.00

340.03 · Reading Carnival (Annual Summer Carnival for Kids)0.00 461.00 -1,039.00 30.73% 1,500.00

340.04 · Grants for Library Books 0.00 0.00 -2,500.00 0.0% 2,500.00

340.05 · Outreach 0.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.0% 1,000.00

340 · Programs - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 340 · Programs 870.92 7,451.01 -20,048.99 27.1% 27,500.00

350 · Technology

350.01 · Circulation (Circ program) 0.00 10,138.50 -9,861.50 50.69% 20,000.00

350.02 · Databases 99.00 16,666.07 -11,333.93 59.52% 28,000.00

350.03 · Hardware

350.03a · Computers 0.00 3,840.98 3,840.98 100.0% 0.00

350.03b · 3D Printer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

350.03c · Tablets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

350.03d · Network Hardware 0.00 1,221.31 1,221.31 100.0% 0.00

350.03e · Other Hardware 4,493.61 5,289.67 5,289.67 100.0% 0.00

350.03 · Hardware - Other 0.00 0.00 -17,000.00 0.0% 17,000.00

Total 350.03 · Hardware 4,493.61 10,351.96 -6,648.04 60.89% 17,000.00

 Page 2 of 5



 12:18 PM

 12/05/16

 Accrual Basis

 Clear Creek County Library District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2016

Nov 16 Jan - Nov 16 $ Over Budget % of Budget  Budget

350.04 · Internet/Wireless/Cell 1,337.24 14,193.81 -3,806.19 78.86% 18,000.00

350.05 · Network/Tech Support 0.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.0% 1,000.00

350.06 · Software 99.99 2,263.93 -736.07 75.46% 3,000.00

350.07 · Support (non circ) 0.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.0% 1,000.00

350.08 · Web Site 59.85 886.01 486.01 221.5% 400.00

350.09 · Copier 562.92 12,385.67 -12,114.33 50.55% 24,500.00

350 · Technology - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 350 · Technology 6,652.61 66,885.95 -46,014.05 59.24% 112,900.00

360 · Special Projects-District 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

370 · Digital Content

370.01 · E-Audio (Audio books) 656.44 3,625.42 3,625.42 100.0% 0.00

370.02 · E-Books 56.90 10,618.66 10,618.66 100.0% 0.00

370.03 · E-Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

370.04 · E-Video 64.60 64.60 64.60 100.0% 0.00

370.05 · E-Apps 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

370.06 · E-Magazines (Digital Magazine Subscriptions) 0.00 201.50 201.50 100.0% 0.00

370 · Digital Content - Other 0.00 0.00 -30,000.00 0.0% 30,000.00

Total 370 · Digital Content 777.94 14,510.18 -15,489.82 48.37% 30,000.00

380 · Technology-Capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

300 · District Programs - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 300 · District Programs 8,393.82 95,439.53 -94,885.47 50.15% 190,325.00

400 · Building Maintenance

410 · Utilities

410.01 · Telephone 630.60 5,927.82 -572.18 91.2% 6,500.00

410.02 · Power 812.06 8,679.08 -5,320.92 61.99% 14,000.00

410.03 · Trash 200.00 1,070.00 -430.00 71.33% 1,500.00

410.04 · Water/Sewer 450.35 2,819.15 -380.85 88.1% 3,200.00

410.05 · Archive Bldg. Expenses (Shared building costs as agreed upon in lease.)0.00 8,906.41 -15,093.59 37.11% 24,000.00

410 · Utilities - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 410 · Utilities 2,093.01 27,402.46 -21,797.54 55.7% 49,200.00

430 · Capital Building Repair (Over $1,000) 0.00 0.00 -100,000.00 0.0% 100,000.00

460 · Special Projects-Buildings 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

480 · Capital Building Projects 0.00 0.00 -50,000.00 0.0% 50,000.00

490 · Grants-Capital 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

400 · Building Maintenance - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 400 · Building Maintenance 2,093.01 27,402.46 -171,797.54 13.76% 199,200.00

500 · District Office/Archives

530 · Dues & Registration 170.10 698.10 -301.90 69.81% 1,000.00

540 · Maintenance

540.01 · Alarm 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

540.02 · Cleaning 0.00 0.00 -500.00 0.0% 500.00

540.03 · Not in use 0.00 0.00

540.04 · Equipment & Repair 0.00 0.00 -2,000.00 0.0% 2,000.00

540.05 · Furniture 0.00 1,489.90 -3,510.10 29.8% 5,000.00

 Page 3 of 5



 12:18 PM

 12/05/16

 Accrual Basis

 Clear Creek County Library District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2016

Nov 16 Jan - Nov 16 $ Over Budget % of Budget  Budget

540 · Maintenance - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 540 · Maintenance 0.00 1,489.90 -6,010.10 19.87% 7,500.00

550 · Office Supplies 191.66 363.39 -4,636.61 7.27% 5,000.00

555 · Office Equipment 0.00 0.00 -1,500.00 0.0% 1,500.00

560 · Operating-Events 0.00 362.85 -587.15 38.2% 950.00

570 · Operating Materials (Archival Library Materials) 0.00 0.00 -1,500.00 0.0% 1,500.00

580 · Postage 0.00 110.42 -589.58 15.77% 700.00

590 · Travel 255.31 1,660.98 -1,539.02 51.91% 3,200.00

500 · District Office/Archives - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 500 · District Office/Archives 617.07 4,685.64 -16,664.36 21.95% 21,350.00

600 · Idaho Springs Public Library

610 · Not in Use 0.00 0.00

620 · Courier 0.00 775.00 375.00 193.75% 400.00

630 · Dues & Registration 10.00 306.00 6.00 102.0% 300.00

640 · Maintenance

640.01 · Alarm 0.00 150.00 -350.00 30.0% 500.00

640.02 · Cleaning 0.00 776.00 -824.00 48.5% 1,600.00

640.03 · Not in Use 0.00 0.00

640.04 · Equipment & Repair (noncapital) 1,104.41 7,107.49 1,107.49 118.46% 6,000.00

640.05 · Furniture 0.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.0% 1,000.00

640.06 · Snow Removal 0.00 51.16 -1,948.84 2.56% 2,000.00

640.07 · Yard 0.00 30.00 -1,170.00 2.5% 1,200.00

640 · Maintenance - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 640 · Maintenance 1,104.41 8,114.65 -4,185.35 65.97% 12,300.00

650 · Office/Operating Supplies 83.95 3,240.09 -1,759.91 64.8% 5,000.00

660 · Operating-Events

660.01 · Printed Materials 0.00 0.00 -200.00 0.0% 200.00

660.02 · Library Events 0.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.0% 1,000.00

660.03 · Volunteer/Staff Meetings 48.54 351.28 -348.72 50.18% 700.00

660 · Operating-Events - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 660 · Operating-Events 48.54 351.28 -1,548.72 18.49% 1,900.00

670 · Operating Supplies

670.01 · Audio 38.72 3,268.67 3,268.67 100.0% 0.00

670.02 · Books 964.72 15,314.10 15,314.10 100.0% 0.00

670.03 · Electronic Subscription 89.20 124.04 124.04 100.0% 0.00

670.04 · McNaughton 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

670.05 · Multi Media 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

670.06 · Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

670.07 · Paper Subscriptions 117.00 893.08 893.08 100.0% 0.00

670.08 · Software/Games 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

670.09 · Video 114.87 2,870.21 2,870.21 100.0% 0.00

670 · Operating Supplies - Other 109.82 109.82 -34,890.18 0.31% 35,000.00

Total 670 · Operating Supplies 1,434.33 22,579.92 -12,420.08 64.51% 35,000.00

680 · Postage 2.94 40.57 -359.43 10.14% 400.00

 Page 4 of 5



 12:18 PM

 12/05/16

 Accrual Basis

 Clear Creek County Library District

 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
 November 2016

Nov 16 Jan - Nov 16 $ Over Budget % of Budget  Budget

690 · Travel 0.00 0.00 -1,000.00 0.0% 1,000.00

600 · Idaho Springs Public Library - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 600 · Idaho Springs Public Library 2,684.17 35,407.51 -20,892.49 62.89% 56,300.00

700 · John Tomay Memorial Library

710 · Not in Use 0.00 0.00

720 · Courier 0.00 0.00 -500.00 0.0% 500.00

730 · Dues & Registration 0.00 0.00 -300.00 0.0% 300.00

740 · Maintenance

740.01 · Alarm 0.00 291.00 -109.00 72.75% 400.00

740.02 · Cleaning 7.69 194.65 -1,505.35 11.45% 1,700.00

740.03 · Not in Use 0.00 0.00

740.04 · Equipment & Repair (noncapital) 0.00 1,167.14 -4,832.86 19.45% 6,000.00

740.05 · Furniture 0.00 801.29 -2,198.71 26.71% 3,000.00

740.06 · Snow Removal 0.00 580.00 -720.00 44.62% 1,300.00

740.07 · Yard 0.00 628.70 -371.30 62.87% 1,000.00

740 · Maintenance - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 740 · Maintenance 7.69 3,662.78 -9,737.22 27.33% 13,400.00

750 · Office/Operating Supplies 366.39 2,990.65 -9.35 99.69% 3,000.00

760 · Operating-Events

760.01 · Printed Materials 0.00 0.00 -200.00 0.0% 200.00

760.02 · Library Events 7.96 39.84 -1,460.16 2.66% 1,500.00

760.03 · Volunteer/Staff Meetings 0.00 43.75 -256.25 14.58% 300.00

760 · Operating-Events - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 760 · Operating-Events 7.96 83.59 -1,916.41 4.18% 2,000.00

770 · Operating-Materials

770.01 · Audio 187.12 1,971.27 1,971.27 100.0% 0.00

770.02 · Books 870.76 13,844.58 13,844.58 100.0% 0.00

770.03 · Electronic Subscriptions 0.00 24.70 24.70 100.0% 0.00

770.04 · McNaughton 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

770.05 · Multi-Media 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

770.06 · Music 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

770.07 · Paper Subscriptions 105.00 430.10 430.10 100.0% 0.00

770.08 · Software/Games 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00

770.09 · Video 225.18 3,436.02 3,436.02 100.0% 0.00

770 · Operating-Materials - Other 0.00 0.00 -28,000.00 0.0% 28,000.00

Total 770 · Operating-Materials 1,388.06 19,706.67 -8,293.33 70.38% 28,000.00

780 · Postage 0.00 91.71 -108.29 45.86% 200.00

790 · Travel 0.00 111.19 -688.81 13.9% 800.00

700 · John Tomay Memorial Library - Other 0.00 0.00

Total 700 · John Tomay Memorial Library 1,770.10 26,646.59 -21,553.41 55.28% 48,200.00

Total Expense 36,565.57 760,935.45 -622,995.55 54.98% 1,383,931.00

-32,065.57 475,464.34 635,999.34 -296.18% -160,535.00

 Page 5 of 5



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

11/02/2016 A & D Service Corp Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 640.04 · Equipment & Repair (noncapital) -505.00

-505.00

11/02/2016 Bassist, Sharon Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 CAL Conf 590 · Travel -255.31

-255.31

11/02/2016 Capital One Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 SB Safeway Coffee filter JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -3.22

LC NR Dr. Oz 770.02 · Books -26.91

SB Amazon Ribbon Adult Craft JTML/ISPL 340.01j · Adult Craft -7.48

GP USPS 680 · Postage -2.94

SL NR USPS 320.01 · Postage -46.95

SL NR Ipage 350.08 · Web Site -59.79

SL Amazon recorder 550 · Office Supplies -47.45

SL Microsoft - for staff 350.06 · Software -99.88

SL Amazon envelopes/plastic flash drives 550 · Office Supplies -49.60

SL Quill payment for credit used 550 · Office Supplies -23.24

GP Amazon 670.02 · Books -18.96

GP Amazon 670.07 · Paper Subscriptions -11.99

GP Amazon 670.02 · Books -5.79

GP Safeway BAC food ISPL 660.03 · Volunteer/Staff Meetings -48.49

GP Amazon 670.09 · Video -14.97

GP Denver Bookbinding Newspaper ISPL 670.07 · Paper Subscriptions -104.89

GP Denver Bookbinding Newspaper JTML 770.07 · Paper Subscriptions -104.89

GP Amazon 670.09 · Video -19.97

GP Amazon 670.09 · Video -15.94

GP Amazon 670.09 · Video -31.92

GP Amazon 640.04 · Equipment & Repair (noncapital) -39.37

GP Amazon 670.02 · Books -9.78

GP Amazon 670.02 · Books -4.00

GP Amazon 670.02 · Books -10.80

GP Amazon 670.09 · Video -14.97

GP Amazon Carlson purchase 670.02 · Books -74.87

GP Amazon 670.02 · Books -68.17

GP Amazon 670.09 · Video -19.84

GP Colo Dept of State 501C3 filing 630 · Dues & Registration -9.99

GP Amazon Carlson purchase 670.01 · Audio -38.68

GP NR Amazon 670.02 · Books -14.97

LC NR Amazon 670 · Operating Supplies -12.34

 Page 1 of 7



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

LC NR Magazines 670.03 · Electronic Subscription -32.91

LC NR Amazon 670.03 · Electronic Subscription -14.98

LC NR Amazon 670 · Operating Supplies -23.97

LC NR Amazon 670 · Operating Supplies -17.98

LC NR Amazon 670 · Operating Supplies -19.97

LC NR Amazon 670 · Operating Supplies -9.99

LC NR Magazine express 670.03 · Electronic Subscription -11.99

LC NR Magazine express 670.03 · Electronic Subscription -29.22

LC NR Amazon 670 · Operating Supplies -25.45

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -14.97

LC Lowes Pumpkins 760.02 · Library Events -7.95

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -17.40

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -24.92

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -24.92

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -36.91

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -9.95

LC Amazon 770.02 · Books -48.04

LC Amazon 770.01 · Audio -47.58

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -19.97

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -32.95

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -22.97

LC Amazon Computer cords 350.03e · Other Hardware -28.44

LC Amazon 770.09 · Video -19.97

LC Amazon 770.02 · Books -11.52

LC Amazon 770.02 · Books -28.94

SB Amazon Ribbon JTML/ISPL 340.01j · Adult Craft -19.97

SB Amazon Ribbon Adult Craft JTML/ISPL` 340.01j · Adult Craft -9.97

SB EB ETitutorial 530 · Dues & Registration -169.92

SB Amazon prime 350.02 · Databases -98.89

SB Amazon popcorn seasoning JTML 340.01f · Movie Nights -11.98

SB Safeway Fruit/yogurt ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -5.20

SB Wal-mart craft supplies JTML/ISPL 340.01j · Adult Craft -20.56

SB Safeway apples ISPL 340.01a · After School -12.56

SB Safeway snacks JTML 340.01a · After School -3.28

SB Collections Etc Prices 2017 JTML/ISPL 340.02d · SRP Supplies -45.16

SB Vista Print Banner JTML Arts in the Park 340.01i · Misc Kids -47.85

SB Safeway Food for staff meeting JTML/ISPL 330 · Staff Development -11.49

SB Amazon Eyes/Pads JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -6.98

SB Amazon candles/markers ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -29.71

SB Amazon candy sticks JTML/ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -6.48

SB Amazon Xmas ornaments JTML/ISPL 340.01j · Adult Craft -15.97

SB Amazon books/candymakers ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -80.31

SB Safeway pumpkins JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -8.67

SB Safeway cornstarch JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -2.41

SB Safeway clementines ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -6.39

 Page 2 of 7



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

SB Walmart yarn Arts in the Park JTML 340.01i · Misc Kids -3.00

SB Walmart stickers JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -3.05

SB Safeway cornstarch JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -3.97

SB Costco candy/water JTML 340.01f · Movie Nights -28.25

SB Costco snack JTML 340.01a · After School -65.97

SB Costco snack ISPL 340.01a · After School -56.43

SB Costco candy ISPL boo!kfest 340.01e · Holiday Programs -59.90

SB Costco candy JTML boo!kfest 340.01e · Holiday Programs -75.87

SB Costco dish soap JTML 740.02 · Cleaning -7.68

SB Amazon craft pumpkins JTML/ISPL 340.01j · Adult Craft -16.97

SB Safeway pumpkins JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -11.16

SB Safeway candy ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -11.89

SB Safeway candy ISPL 340.01e · Holiday Programs -8.43

SB Safeway cheese ISPL 340.01c · Book Groups -6.44

SB Amazon popcorn bags JTML 340.01f · Movie Nights -6.58

SB Amazon dum dums boo!kfest ISPL 340.01e · Holiday Programs -10.42

SB Amazon dums dums boo!fest JTML 340.01e · Holiday Programs -10.42

SB Walmart eyes/paing JTML/ISPL 340.01h · Story Times -4.76

SB Amazon Popcorn oil JTML 340.01f · Movie Nights -22.97

SB Amazon Holi powder Days off (kids) JTML/ISPL 340.01a · After School -19.47

-2,694.29

11/02/2016 CenturyLink Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 JTML 410.01 · Telephone -202.74

-202.74

11/03/2016 CenturyLink Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/03/2016 District 410.01 · Telephone -137.74

-137.74

11/09/2016 CenturyLink Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 ISPL 410.01 · Telephone -290.12

-290.12

11/09/2016 Collins, Cockrel & Cole Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 Review mesage 240.04 · Legal/Professional Fees -72.00

-72.00

11/16/2016 Colorado Special Districts Property2017 Checking (Clear Creek National)

2017 PRE-PAYMENTS -1,459.14

 Page 3 of 7



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

-1,459.14

11/16/2016 Colorado Special Districts Property Checking (Clear Creek National)

Insurance PRE-PAYMENTS -10,494.18

-10,494.18

11/03/2016 Comcast Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/03/2016 District 350.04 · Internet/Wireless/Cell -221.03

-221.03

11/09/2016 Comcast Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 2nd ISPL 350.04 · Internet/Wireless/Cell -288.88

-288.88

11/16/2016 Comcast Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 JTML 350.04 · Internet/Wireless/Cell -271.03

-271.03

11/16/2016 Comcast Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 ISPL 350.04 · Internet/Wireless/Cell -256.03

-256.03

11/02/2016 Courtney Reynolds Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 Tree lighting 340.01e · Holiday Programs -100.00

-100.00

11/09/2016 Deep Rock Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 750 · Office/Operating Supplies -45.03

-45.03

11/02/2016 Demco Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 Paperfold book jacket & laminate 750 · Office/Operating Supplies -321.36

Insert panel 550 · Office Supplies -71.25

-392.61

11/03/2016 Employers Council Services Checking (Clear Creek National)

 Page 4 of 7



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

11/03/2016 Barwick 240.05 · MSEC (HR Services) -25.00

-25.00

11/09/2016 Employers Council Services Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 Compensation Consult 240.05 · MSEC (HR Services) -1,037.50

-1,037.50

11/09/2016 Evergreen Newspapers Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 Clerk Position 310.01 · Advertisements -44.11

-44.11

11/16/2016 Evergreen Newspapers Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 Budget Notice 310.02 · Legal Notices -11.88

-11.88

11/16/2016 Georgetown Trust Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 District/Archives 250 · Office Rental -1,500.00

-1,500.00

11/09/2016 Georgetown, Town of Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 JTML 410.04 · Water/Sewer -207.35

-207.35

11/09/2016 Idaho Springs, City of Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 ISPL 410.04 · Water/Sewer -243.00

-243.00

11/02/2016 Ingram Library Services Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -14.29

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -14.82

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -787.98

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -36.83

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -14.30

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -47.83

11/02/2016 670.02 · Books -5.49

11/02/2016 770.02 · Books -16.47

11/02/2016 770.02 · Books -64.51

11/02/2016 770.02 · Books -7.12

 Page 5 of 7



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

-1,009.64

11/03/2016 Ingram Library Services Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/03/2016 770.02 · Books -667.13

-667.13

11/09/2016 Konica Minolta Business Solutions Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 JTML 350.09 · Copier -224.14

11/09/2016 ISPL 350.09 · Copier -45.85

11/09/2016 ISPL 350.09 · Copier -250.74

11/09/2016 District 350.09 · Copier -42.19

-562.92

11/16/2016 Quill Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 TP & Emergency Beverage(will have credit) 650 · Office/Operating Supplies -68.96

11/16/2016 Emergency Beverage(will have credit) 650 · Office/Operating Supplies -14.99

-83.95

11/09/2016 R.M.A & Associates Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 JTML 350.03e · Other Hardware -2,395.99

11/09/2016 ISPL 350.03e · Other Hardware -2,069.15

-4,465.14

11/02/2016 Recorded Books, LLC Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 INV 75423098 370.01 · E-Audio (Audio books) -280.20

INV 75427570 370.01 · E-Audio (Audio books) -99.97

INV 75429193 370.01 · E-Audio (Audio books) -145.25

-525.42

11/02/2016 Recorded Books, LLC Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 INV 75418637 370.02 · E-Books -56.90

INV 75426762 370.01 · E-Audio (Audio books) -24.53

-81.43

11/02/2016 Recorded Books, LLC Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/02/2016 INV 75419502 770.01 · Audio -139.49

-139.49

 Page 6 of 7



 12:24 PM

 12/05/16
 Clear Creek County Library District

 Check Detail
 November 2016

Date Name Memo Account Paid Amount

11/16/2016 Recorded Books, LLC Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 INV 75433578 370.01 · E-Audio (Audio books) -106.49

-106.49

11/16/2016 Recorded Books, LLC Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 INV 75431146 370.04 · E-Video -64.60

-64.60

11/16/2016 Sprint0615158315-3 Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/16/2016 350.04 · Internet/Wireless/Cell -300.27

-300.27

11/16/2016 The Library Corporation Checking (Clear Creek National)

SIP communication software Jan 2017-Dec 2017 PRE-PAYMENTS -500.00

-500.00

11/09/2016 Timberline Disposal Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 ISPL 410.03 · Trash -200.00

-200.00

11/09/2016 Xcel Energy Checking (Clear Creek National)

11/09/2016 JTML 410.02 · Power -353.37

ISPL 410.02 · Power -458.69

-812.06

 Page 7 of 7



 

Rev. 10-11-2016 

Clear Creek County Library District 

Public Participation Policy 1-7 

 

 

OVERVIEW: 

 

Meetings of the Board of Trustees of the Clear Creek County Library District are conducted in 

accordance with the Colorado Sunshine Law as set out in Section 24-6-402 of the Colorado 

Revised Statutes.  Accordingly, other than those portions that are held in Executive Session, all 

Board meetings and Committee meetings are open to the public and anyone, including media 

representatives, may attend in order to observe the meetings. 

 

 

PROCEDURES FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 

The agenda of a Board meeting will include an item for "Public Comment," which is the time for 

the public in attendance to contribute to the meeting.  During the meeting, the Board will listen 

but not respond to those who speak.  If a response is needed it will come after the board has had 

time to deliberate the issue.  However, the Board may ask questions for clarification or, on 

occasion, ask for input from the audience on other agenda items.  In order for the Board to 

fulfill its obligation to complete the scheduled agenda in an effective and efficient manner, a 

maximum of 5 minutes per person wishing to speak and a total of 30 minutes of public 

participation will be permitted during the public comment section of the agenda.  At the 

discretion of the Presiding Officer, the time for public participation may be increased or reduced. 

 

Each person wishing to speak during Public Comment should sign in before the meeting begins 

and will be recognized by the Presiding Officer at the appropriate time on the agenda.  The 

speaker will provide his or her name and address for inclusion in the official record of the 

meeting.  Letters may be read to the board during the period of Public Comment, but the  same 

time constraints shall apply and/or the letter needs to be submitted in writing.  The minutes of 

the meeting will reflect the comments and concerns made during this portion of the agenda. 

 

These procedures are not designed to restrict the scheduled appearances of citizens who have 

regular business with the Board and whose presentations are provided for on the agenda.  At the 

discretion of the Presiding Officer, members of the public will be allowed to ask for clarification 

of agenda items during meeting proceedings. 

 

 

ALTERNATE METHODS OF PARTICIPATION 

 

The District may make other methods of public participation available via mail, email, and 

online participation.  Within the parameters of the Sunshine Law the Board may occasionally use 

citizen committees, panels or surveys if appropriate.  Access to other methods of participation 

may be made available through the library’s website. 

 
Adopted by motion and approval of the Board of Trustees of the Clear Creek County Library District on 

. 



Clear Creek County Library District
Employee Handbook

Adopted by

The Clear Creek County Library
District

Board of Trustees

Draft 9-13-2016



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 0109/1309/20132016 Page i

Mission Statement
The Clear Creek County Library District will be a centerpiece of our community,
providing public library services that enhance our community through shared collections,
cultural events and activities, the preservation and sharing of our county’s rich historical
past, access to current and emerging technologies, and service to our democracy through
the free flow of information.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 0109/1309/20132016 Page ii

IMPORTANT NOTICE

THIS HANDBOOK IS DESIGNED TO ACQUAINT EMPLOYEES OF CLEAR CREEK
COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT (“Library District”, “District” or “Library”) WITH SOME
INFORMATION ABOUT WORKING HERE.  THE HANDBOOK IS NOT ALL-INCLUSIVE,
BUT IS INTENDED TO PROVIDE EMPLOYEES WITH A SUMMARY OF SOME OF THE
DISTRICT’S GUIDELINES.  THIS EDITION REPLACES ALL PREVIOUSLY ISSUED
EDITIONS.

EMPLOYMENT WITH CLEAR CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT IS AT-WILL.
EMPLOYEES HAVE THE RIGHT TO END THEIR WORK RELATIONSHIP WITH THE
DISTRICT, WITH OR WITHOUT ADVANCE NOTICE FOR ANY REASON.  THE
DISTRICT HAS THE SAME RIGHT.  THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS HANDBOOK AND
ANY VERBAL STATEMENTS MADE BY MANAGEMENT ARE NOT INTENDED TO
CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, NOR
ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR A SPECIFIC DURATION.

NO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK CAN ANTICIPATE EVERY CIRCUMSTANCE OR
QUESTION.  AFTER READING THE HANDBOOK, EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE
QUESTIONS SHOULD TALK WITH THEIR IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR OR THE
DISTRICT LIBRARY DIRECTOR, WHO ACTS AS OUR HUMAN RESOURCES
DEPARTMENT.  IN ADDITION, THE NEED MAY ARISE TO CHANGE THE
GUIDELINES DESCRIBED IN THE HANDBOOK.  EXCEPT FOR THE AT-WILL NATURE
OF THE EMPLOYMENT, THE DISTRICT THEREFORE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO
INTERPRET THEM OR TO CHANGE THEM WITHOUT PRIOR NOTICE.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 0109/1309/20132016 Page iii

From the District Library Director

This handbook was developed to describe some of the guidelines, programs, and benefits for
employees.  All employees should familiarize themselves with the contents of the employee
handbook as soon as possible, for it may answer many questions about employment with the
Clear Creek County Library District.

We believe that each employee contributes directly to the District’s success, and we hope you
will take pride in being a member of our team.

We hope that your experience here will be challenging and enjoyable.

Sue Lathrop
District Library Director



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 0109/1309/20132016 Page iii

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER ONE .............................................................................................................. 1
1.0 COMMUNICATION ............................................................................................... 1

1.1 Communication Policy ...............................................................................................
1

1.1.1 ................................................................. Electronic and Wireless Communication
14

1.1.2 Patron Confidentiality
1.1.3 External Communication
1.1.4 Social Media
1.2 Grievance Policy

CHAPTER TWO.......................................................................................................... 625
2.0 HIRING GUIDELINES ......................................................................................... 62

2.1 Job Posting & Recruitment Guidelines ........................................................................ 62
2.2 Relatives Working for the Library District .................................................................. 62

CHAPTER THREE........................................................................................................ 84
3.0 EMPLOYEE STATUS........................................................................................... 84

3.1 Full Time I Employee .................................................................................................. 84
3.2 Full Time II Employee ................................................................................................. 84
3.3 Part Time I Employee .................................................................................................. 84
3.4 Part Time II Employee ................................................................................................. 84
3.5 Temporary Employee................................................................................................... 84
3.6 Exempt Employee ........................................................................................................ 84
3.7 Non-exempt Employee................................................................................................. 84
3.8 Temporary Upgrade ..................................................................................................... 84

CHAPTER FOUR.......................................................................................................... 95
4.0 COMPENSATION GUIDELINES........................................................................ 95

4.1 Salary Schedule ............................................................................................................ 95
4.2 Payday .......................................................................................................................... 95
4.3 Payroll Advances.......................................................................................................... 95
4.4 Overtime....................................................................................................................... 95

4.4.1 How Paid/When Paid: ........................................................................................... 95



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 0109/1309/20132016 Page iv

CHAPTER FIVE.......................................................................................................... 106
5.0 WORK GUIDELINES ......................................................................................... 106

5.1 Hours of Work............................................................................................................ 106
5.1.2 Lunch Period........................................................................................................ 106
5.1.3 Hours Worked...................................................................................................... 106
5.1.4 Maximum Work Hours Per Shift......................................................................... 106
5.1.5 Rest Breaks .......................................................................................................... 106

5.2 Attendance/Time Records .......................................................................................... 106
5.3 Community Relations................................................................................................. 117
5.4 Appearance (Dress) .................................................................................................... 117
5.5 Performance Appraisal ............................................................................................... 117
5.6 Political Activities ...................................................................................................... 117
5.7 Smoking ..................................................................................................................... 128
5.8 Personnel Records ...................................................................................................... 128
5.9 Conduct & Conflict of Interest................................................................................... 128
5.10 Personal Property ....................................................................................................... 139
5.11 Rights to Copyrights and Patents ............................................................................... 139
5.12 Gifts and Gratuities .................................................................................................... 139
5.13 Outside Employment................................................................................................ 1410
5.14 Use of Tools, Vehicles and Property........................................................................ 1410
5.15 Telephone Usage ...................................................................................................... 1510

CHAPTER SIX .......................................................................................................... 1612
6.0 LEAVES OF ABSENCE ................................................................................... 1612

6.1 General Provisions ................................................................................................... 1612
6.2 Domestic Abuse Leave............................................................................................. 1612
6.3 Funeral Leave........................................................................................................... 1713
6.4 Holiday Leave .......................................................................................................... 1713
6.5 Jury Leave ................................................................................................................ 1814
6.6 Medical Leave of Absence....................................................................................... 1814
6.7 Military Leave .......................................................................................................... 1915
6.8 Parental Leave Without Pay..................................................................................... 1915
6.9 Personal Leave of Absence without Pay .................................................................. 2016
6.10 Personal Time-off (PTO) Guideline......................................................................... 2016
6.11 Voluntary Personal Time Off Donation Program .................................................... 2016

6.11.1 Case By Case - Donation for Individual Employee: ......................................... 2218

CHAPTER SEVEN.................................................................................................... 2319
7.0 BENEFITS ......................................................................................................... 2319

7.1 Benefits General Guidelines..................................................................................... 2319
7.1.1 Full-time Status: ................................................................................................ 2319
7.1.2 Part-Time Status I:............................................................................................. 2319

7.2 Health and Life Insurance ........................................................................................ 2319
7.3 Disability Programs.................................................................................................. 2420

7.3.1 Short-Term Disability:....................................................................................... 2420
7.3.2 Long-Term Disability: ....................................................................................... 2420



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 0109/1309/20132016 Page v

7.4 Credit Union............................................................................................................. 2420
7.5 Deferred Compensation............................................................................................ 2420
7.6 Training .................................................................................................................... 2420
7.7 Education (Tuition Assistance) ................................................................................ 2521
7.8 Retirement ................................................................................................................ 2521
7.9 PTO/Benefits Reimbursement.................................................................................. 2521

CHAPTER EIGHT..................................................................................................... 2622
8.0 SAFETY............................................................................................................. 2622

8.1 Alcohol and Drugs ................................................................................................... 2622
8.2 Safety/Reporting of Injury ....................................................................................... 2723
8.3 Liability Coverage.................................................................................................... 2723
8.4 Traffic Actions ......................................................................................................... 2723
8.5 Seat Belt Resolution ................................................................................................. 2723

CHAPTER NINE ....................................................................................................... 2824
9.0 LIBRARY DISTRICT TRAVEL GUIDELINES.............................................. 2824

9.1 Approval for Travel.................................................................................................. 2824

CHAPTER TEN............................................................................................................. 25
10.0 EMPLOYMENT .................................................................................................... 25

10.1 EEO/Harassment Policy............................................................................................... 25
10.2 ADA and Religious Accommodation .......................................................................... 25
10.3 EEO Harassment .......................................................................................................... 25
10.4 Sexual Harassment ....................................................................................................... 25
10.5 Complaint Procedure.................................................................................................... 25

10.5.1 Filing a Retaliation Complaint .............................................................................. 26
10.5.2 Investigation .......................................................................................................... 26
10.5.3 Decision ................................................................................................................. 26
10.5.4 Appeal.................................................................................................................... 26

CHAPTER ELEVEN.................................................................................................. 3329
11.0 SEPARATION ................................................................................................... 3329

11.1 Retirement ................................................................................................................ 3329
11.2 Return of Library District Property.......................................................................... 3329
11.3 Exit Interviews — Separation Employees ............................................................... 3329

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT ....................................................................... 3430



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 1

CHAPTER ONE

1.0 COMMUNICATION

1.1 Communication Policy

Communication in the workplace is essential to the library. We need to work with each
other and with the public in order to be effective and to attain our mission.

To further communication among staff members, we will hold at least 10 staff meetings
per year. Employees are encouraged to bring suggestions and recommendations for
discussion.

The Library District’s Communication Plan, which is a set of procedures that may change
with time, will be available to all employees, either in the Supervisor’s Manual or online
in a staff-accessible site.

1.1.1 Electronic and Wireless Communication

Every employee will be issued a library email address from which to conduct official
business. Employees will check their email prior to or at the beginning of their shifts.
Important information relating to work will be sent through this medium, including:

 Minutes/outlines from meetings such as management, staff and board
meetings

 Changes in policies or procedures
 Information about patrons everyone should know
 Information about problem situations and how to handle them
 Celebrations of achievements and good work
 Notices of job openings

Other types of communication media will be used as well.

If personal communication is received at the library email address, it is the employee’s
responsibility to transfer that information to another email or format as soon as possible.
When employment ends, that business email address will either be erased or turned over
to another employee taking the position who may need the information in the account, so
it is critical that personal information is removed.

1.1.2 Patron Confidentiality



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 2

All employees must understand that library patron confidentiality is protected by law in
the State of Colorado. Patron Confidentiality extends to information sought or received;
materials consulted and/or borrowed; and includes database search records, reference
interviews, circulation records, interlibrary loan transactions, registration records, and
all other personally identifiable uses of library materials, facilities, or services.

Colorado law (§24-90-119) requires that records may only be disclosed:

 For the reasonable operation of the library
 Upon written consent of the user
 Pursuant to subpoena or court order
 Or to a custodial parent or legal guardian with access to a minor’s library card or

number.

Specifically, the law states that “any library official, employee, or volunteer who
discloses information in violation of this section commits a class 2 petty offense and,
upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than three hundred
dollars.” While the library district will not pursue legal action against an employee who
violates this policy, the employee who violates patron confidentiality may be subject to
internal discipline.

1.1.3 External Communication

Erroneous or inaccurate information can have legal or financial consequences for the
library. In general, comments relating to the Library District’s business activities should
only be disseminated by the Library Board or Library Director. Only an official library
spokesperson should speak to the media on library-related issues.

1.1.4 Social Media

Only authorized staff will post on the library’s social media sites or respond to requests
made through them. It is important that all employees note that people using social
networks and online forums often tend to blur the distinction between a person’s
“official” identity and personal identity. As a result, consider the following when posting:

 When posting outside of the library, but on a subject related to the library, provide
a disclaimer, such as “this is my own opinion and does not necessarily reflect the
opinion of the Clear Creek County Library District.”

 The employee should not use or reference their formal positon when writing in a
non-official capacity.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 3

 A library email address should not be used to establish a private social media
presence.

 Employees should not write anything that could appear to be legal advice.
 Employees who receive official correspondence through their personal email or

social media outlets should forward the correspondence to a library email address
and respond from there.

 Employees should always pause before posting to think about how the post will
be received

2.0 OPEN DOOR POLICY & PROCEDURE

If the complaint involves discrimination or harassment then an employee should follow
the EEO/Harassment Complaint Procedure in the previous chapter.

We strive to promote a healthy environment for the mutual discussion of problems.
Communication between employees and their supervisors is necessary to maintain a
harmonious and productive work relationship.

Retaliation against employees who disagree or are dissatisfied with work-related matters
is strictly prohibited.  A formal written complaint should be submitted by the employee to
their immediate supervisor within ten (10) working days of the incident.  Discussions
held in a timely manner will enhance our ability to resolve a concern while it is fresh in
everyone’s mind.  The complaint should include the specific nature of the problem, any
available documentation such as dates, times, places, etc., and what the employee would
consider to be a satisfactory resolution.

If the complaint is not resolved, or if it is inappropriate to go to the supervisor, then the
employee may request that the issue be reviewed by the District Library Director or, if
involving that person, the District Library Board.  The reviewing party may conduct a
paper review of the complaint or schedule a meeting with the employee and the
supervisor involved.  The reviewing party will hold a meeting with the employee and/or
supervisor involved. The District Library Director (or the District Library Board in the
event the incident involves the District Library Director) will make the final
determination on how the complaint will be resolved.

1.2 GRIEVANCE POLICY

The Library District encourages employees and supervisors to use mutual consideration
and goodwill in resolving differences that may arise concerning employment issues.
Employees are encouraged to resolve concerns, issues or complaints that they may
have promptly, genuinely, and candidly when the issue arises. The employee should
request a meeting with their supervisor to discuss their concern, issue or complaint. The
supervisor should respond to the request within 10 days.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 4

In the event of an employment dispute that cannot be resolved informally, the complaint
should be made in writing to the employee’s immediate supervisor, with a copy to the
Library Director. The complaint should be detailed, giving specific information.

If the complaint cannot be resolved at that level, the complainant should notify the Library
Director in writing with an explanation for the continuation.

If the Library Director is unable to resolve the dispute or if the complaint involves the
Library Director, the complainant should notify the District Library Board President in
writing. The matter should be presented to the Board at its next meeting. The board will
call a special meeting if circumstances arise that require a more immediate response. The
District Library Board’s decision shall be final.

INSERT PRINTABLE COMPLAINT FORM



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 5

Employee Concern Form
The Library District encourages you to contact your supervisor or Human Resources
Hotline, or Library Director if you have a concern, or experience a problem that affects
you or your co-workers. We ask that you complete this form within 10 working days after
the incident or problem first occurred. You will be contacted about the matter within 10
days.
Your name: _________________________________________ Date:
____________________
Position ____________________________________________ Location:
_________________
Phone Number where you can be reached:
________________________________________________
Complaint/Concern Information
Date of Incident: ______________________ Time of Incident:
______________________________
Location of Incident:
__________________________________________________________________
Please describe the specific act(s):

Are there others who have witnessed this behavior or others who have experienced a
similar concern or problem? If so, please provide their name(s) and phone numbers.

Have you raised this incident with anyone else in the organization? If so, who and when?

Do you have any suggestion for proposed action to address or resolve the
complaint/concern?

Do you have any additional information or comments?



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 6

CHAPTER TWO

32.0 HIRING GUIDELINES

32.1 Job Posting & Recruitment Guidelines

The Library District supports promotions for available positions from within the
organization whenever practical.  To that end, the Library District has established a job-
posting and recruitment program that gives employees an opportunity to apply for
positions for which they are interested and qualified.

Recruitment for position vacancies below senior management level is normally posted in
the staff areas and on the bulletin boards at the Georgetown & Idaho Springs Libraries.
Postings generally include the job title and minimum qualifications and skills.  To ensure
that Library District employees are aware of position openings, all appropriate vacancies
will be posted for a minimum of five (5) working days.

In order for an employee to be considered for an open position, he or she must meet the
minimum hiring requirements, qualifications and skills, and be an employee of good
standing in terms of overall work record.

32.2 Relatives Working for the Library District

Persons who are related are not eligible for hire to a position where:

1. Either would directly supervise the other; or

2. Either would audit, verify, receive, or be entrusted with monies received or handled
by the other; or

3. Either occupies a position in which he or she has the power to affect the outcome of
substantive issues of the other’s employment (e.g., hiring, promotion, transfer,
discipline, demotion, discharge, salary, benefits) without the consent of a peer or
superior employee.

For purposes of this guideline, “relative” and “related” mean and refer to the relationships
of spouse, significant other, parent (including step-parent), grandparent or grandchild,
sibling (including step-brother and -sister), parent-in-law, and child or children (including
a step-child or step-children).  For purposes of this guideline, a “significant other” means
a person to whom an employee is engaged or with whom the employee has a relationship
which the employee equates, or is perceived by others to equate, to that of a spouse or
fiancé.

If employees become related, and one or more of the circumstances described above
apply, one of them must resign or transfer within thirty days to another division or



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 7

department as long as a job opening exists.  The Library District reserves the right to
dismiss one of them, at its sole discretion, if neither resigns or transfers within that time.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 8

CHAPTER THREE

43.0 EMPLOYEE STATUS

43.1 Full Time I Employee

An employee normally scheduled to work at least 37 to 40 hours per week.  Full time
employees are currently eligible for District benefits.

43.2 Full Time II Employee

An employee normally scheduled to work at least 30 to 36 hours per week.  Full time
employees are currently eligible for District benefits.

43.3 Part Time I Employee

An employee normally scheduled to work at least 20 to 29 hours per week.  Part time I
employees are currently eligible for some District benefits.

43.4 Part Time II Employee

An employee normally scheduled to regularly work up to 19 hours per week.  Part time II
employees are currently ineligible for District benefits.

43.5 Temporary Employee

An employee who is hired in a job established for a temporary period or for a specific
assignment. Temporary employees are currently ineligible for District benefits.

43.6 Exempt Employee

An employee who is not eligible for overtime pay.

43.7 Non-exempt Employee

Non-exempt employees are eligible for paid overtime at one and one-half times their
regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours per workweek.

43.8 Temporary Upgrade

Employees may temporarily be reassigned to other positions and duties as required.
Upon the expiration of the temporary assignment, the individual will revert to the former
position and rate of pay, if changed.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 9

CHAPTER FOUR

54.0 COMPENSATION GUIDELINES

54.1 Salary ScheduleRanges

The Clear Creek County Library District Board of Trustees adopts the Salary Schedule. A
copy of the Salary ranges schedule is available electronically in the staff folder or upon
request from the employee’s immediate supervisor or the District Library Director. In
general, the Salary Schedule is based on number of years with the District. However, the
District Library Director and Board of Trustees reserve the right to advance or not
advance employees on the salary schedule according to work performance. The Salary
Schedule is subject to change, at the Board of Trustees’ Discretion, without notice.

54.2 Payday

Employees are paid every two (2) weeks.

54.3 Payroll Advances

The Library District may consider an off-schedule payroll advance to an employee if the
request is an emergency, hardship, or special circumstance situation.  All advance
requests are limited to what the employee has earned up to the date of the advance.

54.4 Overtime

The Library District may require overtime from all employees in the event of increased
workload or emergencies.  All overtime must be approved in advance by the Branch
Librarian or District Library Director.

54.4.1 How Paid/When Paid:

1. Overtime is paid at a rate of 1½ times the number of hours worked in excess of
forty (40) hours within the Library District’s established work week.

2. Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime pay.

3. Exempt employees may receive compensatory time if approved in advance by the
Library Director.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 10

CHAPTER FIVE

65.0 WORK GUIDELINES

65.1 Hours of Work

65.1.1 Work Week

The workweek is seven (7) consecutive days beginning at 12:01 A.M.  Monday through
12:00 Midnight Sunday. The hours of the libraries vary and may be changed by the Clear
Creek County Library District Board of Trustees.

65.1.2 Lunch Period

Employees who work six (6) or more hours may take a ½-hour unpaid break during a
break time designated by the branch librarian.  An additional lunch period of ½ hour may
also be given to employees who work in excess of four (4) hours overtime in one day.

65.1.3 Hours Worked

For purposes of overtime, hours worked do not include personal time off, compensatory
time taken, snow days, holiday leave, or any leave.

65.1.4 Maximum Work Hours Per Shift

A maximum of twelve (12) consecutive hours will be allowed during any time period
worked, unless an emergency situation exists.

65.1.5 Rest Breaks

Employees are given the option to take a 15-minute paid rest break for every four (4)
consecutive hours of work. Break times may not be accumulated to extend the lunch hour
or change the work period.

65.2 Attendance/Time Records

Employees are expected to be on time to work.  Excessive tardiness or absenteeism will
not be tolerated.  Employees expecting to be late should phone or text[JM1] their
supervisor immediately.

All employees must call or text[JM2] their supervisor before the start of their shift to report
an absence. An employee who fails to call in or report to work for two days will be
terminated.

If using text, you must get a response from your supervisor acknowledging receipt of the
text. Email is not acceptable on the day the employee is scheduled, because supervisors
need as much advance notice as possible.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 11

Time records must be accurately kept on Library District approved forms. Each employee
must fill out his/her own time sheet.  Falsifying a time sheet is strictly prohibited.

Anyone who forgets to fill out a time sheet should notify his/her supervisor as soon as
possible. Questions regarding this matter may be directed to the Library Director or the
district’s Human Resource Specialist.

65.3 Community Relations

Each employee is expected to be courteous, impartial and considerate in dealing with the
public, bearing in mind that they are acting as a representative of the Library District.

65.4 Appearance (Dress)

At the Clear Creek County Library District, personal appearance, hygiene, and attire are
very important. A professional image must be maintained to instill confidence in the
minds of our customers – the taxpayers. This helps ensure our District’s success.
Employee appearance should be consistent with good hygiene, safety, and should not be
a distraction to the public or fellow employees.

65.5 Performance Appraisal1

The Library District will evaluate employee performance ongoing. Employees may
request a review. recognizes that supervisors continuously appraise the performance of
their subordinates to facilitate sharing how well an employee is doing, in his/her job. The
Library District endeavors to conduct annual reviews for each employee.  An employee
or his or her supervisor may request an additional review to determine whether more
training is required or whether the nature of the employee’s job duties have changed
significantly since the last review or for any reason deemed appropriate by the Library
Director, such as a request for a raise or a performance issue.  A performance review will
need to be completed before consideration of an employee merit increase.

65.6 Political Activities

The District Library Board encourages Library District employees to participate as they
deem appropriate in matters of responsible citizenship as long as such activities are
confined to hours when the employee is not on duty, the employee is not campaigning
while on official Library District business, and that the activities do not utilize Library
District equipment or supplies, and does not impair the efficiency of other employees.
Political beliefs, activities and affiliations are the private concern of the employee.  An

1 This section can create tremendous liability for your organization if you don’t give accurate feedback or if
you don’t provide timely performance appraisals.  It is best to remain silent on the topic in the handbook
and just conduct them as appropriate.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 12

employee’s work status is not affected by participating or not participating in lawful civic
and political activities.

Employees will not:

1. Use their official authority or influence for the purposes of interfering with or
affecting the results of elections or nominations for office.

2. Directly or indirectly coerce or command any other employee to pay, lend or
contribute salary, compensation, service or anything else of value to any political
party, group, organization, or candidate.

Any Library District employee, except one whose principal employment is in connection
with activities financed in whole or in part by United States grants, may be a candidate
for elected political office provided that his/her involvement in campaigning or
performance of the office does not interfere or present a conflict of interest with his/her
job. If such a conflict of interest exists, the employee must resign from his/her position
with the District, give up the elected position, or employment will be terminated. If
involvement is necessary during normal working hours, the individual must take PTO.

65.7 Smoking[JM3]

The Library District maintains a smoke-free environment for its employees.  Employees
must refrain from smoking or using vape pens or e-cigarettes or any other form of
smoking in all Library District owned or leased buildings and within 15 feet of the any
entrance into the building, and in all Library District vehicles.

65.8 Personnel Records

Your personnel Personnel records are is maintained in the Library District office.  It
contains information on your employment and salary history. If youEmployees who wish
to review your their file should, contact the District Library Director or Human Resources
Specialist.  It is important for you employees to provide us with current information
regarding name, address, telephone, insurance changes, tax exemptions, emergency
contacts and other relevant information.

65.9 Conduct & Conflict of Interest

An employee shall avoid outside activities or relationships that may adversely influence
independent judgment, decisions, or actions on the job.

An employee shall not disclose or use confidential information acquired in the course of
his official duties in order to further his personal financial interests.

An employee shall not engage in a substantial financial transaction for his private
business purposes with a person whom he supervises in the course of his official duties.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 13

An employee shall not perform an official act directly and substantially affecting, to its
economic benefit, himself or a business or other undertaking in which he either has a
substantial financial interest or is engaged as counselor, consultant, representative or
agent.  Among other things, this means an employee shall not be a purchaser at any sale,
or vendor in any purchase, made by him in his official capacity.

An employee should not perform an official act directly and substantially affecting a
business or other undertaking to its economic detriment when he has a substantial
financial interest in a competing firm or undertaking.

An employee should not acquire or hold an interest in any business or undertaking which
he has reason to believe may be directly and substantially affected to its economic benefit
by official action to be taken by the Library District or any department over which he has
substantive authority.

An employee that questions whether a situation is a conflict of interest should discuss the
matter with his immediate supervisor.  If management does not resolve the issue, the
matter should be referred to the Clear Creek County Library District Board of Trustees
for final resolution.

65.10 Personal Property

The Library District does not carry insurance that covers the loss of or damage to
personal property of employees.  Employees bring personal belongings onto Library
District property at their own risk.

65.11 Rights to Copyrights and Patents

Statistical information, maps, computer programs, a speech or presentation, a research
paper, etc., prepared by an employee within the scope of employment at the Library
District is considered the sole property of the Library District.  In this instance, the
Library District owns all of the rights to copyright unless the Clear Creek County Library
District Board of Trustees and the employee have agreed to otherwise in a written
statement signed by both.

Patents resulting from work in the scope of employment at the Library District, or with
financial assistance provided by the Library District, shall become the property of the
Library District and the inventor thereto shall assign all rights to the Library District.
Employees must disclose to the District Library Director or Human Resources Specialist
all discoveries related to their sponsored research or creative endeavor that they have
reason to believe may lead to patents.

65.12 Gifts and Gratuities

Library District employees may not accept any compensation, gift, payment of expense,
reward, gratuity, or anything of value from any source except Clear Creek County



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 14

Library District in exchange for their opinion, judgment, exercise of discretion, or other
action in their capacity as a Library District employee.  This provision does not prohibit
receiving gifts or payment of expenses that have a fair market value of less than $50.00
which may occur as a part of normal social intercourse or celebration of a holiday.
Should an employee receive any compensation, gift, money, rewards, gratuities or
anything of value within the framework of this guideline that cannot be practically
returned, it should be turned over to the Clear Creek County Library District Board of
Trustees for proper handling.

65.13 Outside Employment

You Employees may hold a job with another Company as long as youresponsibilities
with the Library District are satisfactorily perform ed.your responsibilities with Clear
Creek County Library District.  Supplemental jobs must not create any actual conflict or
the appearance of a conflict of interest with Clear Creek County Library District and must
not affect your the employee’s ability to meet job requirements, perform competently or
accept overtime hours, and. They are subject to the following limitations:

1. No employee may continue to serve as a Library District employee if appointed to
the Library District board.

2. For elective or public offices other than Library District offices, in the event that
the duties of the office create a substantial conflict with the employee’s duties and
responsibilities, the employee must resign from the elective or public office or be
dismissed from his employment.

65.14 Use of Tools, Vehicles and Property

Library District employees may not use Library District property (except for materials
loanable to the Public) for their private use or the private use of another person or entity
without the expressed permission of the Clear Creek County Library District Board of
Trustees, the District Library Director, or Branch Manager.  In addition, outside the scope
of normal library duties, no alterations may be made to any equipment or Library District
property without written permission of the Branch Librarian or District Library Director.

Use of private tools or equipment.  From time to time, an employee may be required to
use his or her own tools or equipment. Under these circumstances the Library District
may replace worn or broken tools/equipment as approved by the Branch Librarian or
District Library Director.

An employee who is not required to, but chooses to use his or her private tools or
equipment on Library District jobs, must inform the appropriate Supervisor of such use in
advance.  The Supervisor and employee should have a written understanding or
agreement regarding the use, any reimbursement, or replacement, of the tools/equipment
in use.  In the absence of such an agreement, the employee uses his/her own tools or
equipment at his/her own risk.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 15

65.15 Telephone Usage

Personal calls must be kept to a minimum.  Excessive personal use of the Library
District’s telephones, in terms of frequency and length of phone calls will not be
tolerated.

The Library District must be reimbursed for charges incurred for personal use.

65.16 Computer Usage[JM4]

The communication systems are property of the District and intended for business
use.  Therefore, the District maintains the ability to access any computer files, use of
software, Internet usage, e-mail, and voice mail. Employees should have no
expectations of privacy and should backup any personal information stored on
District devices Although employees may select individual passwords, employees
should not assume that such files are confidential.  However, other than
management employees acting on behalf of the District, employees should not
attempt to gain access to another employee’s computer, Internet files, e-mail, or
voice mail without the latter’s permission.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 16

CHAPTER SIX

76.0 LEAVES OF ABSENCE

76.1 General Provisions

The Library District provides various leaves of absence and pay continuation plans.  Any
request for leave of absence must be made in accordance with specific leave provisions as
outlined in the following chapter.

Foreseeable leave requests must include notification to the appropriate Branch Librarian
or District Library Director no later than 30 days prior to the effective leave date.
Foreseeable leave, based on a planned medical absence, should be scheduled so as not to
unduly disrupt Library District operations.  Unforeseeable or emergency leave requests
must be requested as soon as possible.

All leaves of absence are required to use applicable pay continuation accruals as
available, unless exempted.

Approved leaves, with or without pay, are to be reported on the Library District’s payroll
data sheets.  The District Library Director or Human Resource Specialist maintains
official records for leave.

76.2 Domestic Abuse Leave2

Employees subject to domestic abuse may be eligible for up to three days of paid leave of
absence. Documentation of the need for leave will be required. If possible, the employee
should provide advance notice to the District. To be eligible for this leave, an employee
must be employed for 12 months or more AND meet one of the following criteria:

 The employee is a victim of domestic abuse, or

 The employee is a victim of stalking, or

 The employee is a victim of sexual assault, or

 The employee is a victim of any crime, the underlying factual basis of which has been
found by the court on the record to include an act of "domestic violence" as defined in
C.R.S. Â§ 18-6-800.3(1).

An eligible employee may take leave for any of the following reasons:

 Seeking a civil restraining order to prevent domestic abuse.

2 This is only required in Colorado if you have 50 or more employees.  This is a nice benefit to offer,
however you do not need to go into this much detail.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 17

 Obtaining medical care or mental health counseling or both for him or her or for his
or her children to address physical or psychological injuries resulting from the act.

 Making his or her home secure from the perpetrator of the act or seeking new housing
to escape said perpetrator.

 Seeking legal assistance to address issues arising from the act and attending and
preparing for court-related proceedings arising from said act or crime.

76.3 Funeral Leave

Full time employees are currently eligible for paid leave of up to three (3) days to attend
the in-state funeral or five (5) days for an out-of-state funeral of an immediate family
member. Immediate family is defined as the employee’s spouse, parents, children, sisters,
brothers, grandparents, grandchildren, mother and father-in-law and includes step and
half-family members.

If more time off is needed than provided above, other leave may be granted upon the
approval of the District Library Director.

76.4 Holiday Leave

Generally, Clear Creek County Library District follows the holiday calendar established
by the Clear Creek County government. The District Library Director may vary those the
holiday schedule each year holidays as deemed appropriate.  A list of approved holidays
is issued at the beginning of each year.  Holiday pay practices are as follows:

1. All full-time and part-time employees who work 20 hours or more are eligible for
holiday pay.  Part-time employees must be regularly scheduled to work 20 hours
or more per week to be eligible and are paid on a prorated basis (if a holiday falls
on a day they are not scheduled to work) or for the number of hours they were
scheduled to work if it falls on a day they are normally scheduled to work.

2. For the purposes of calculating overtime, holiday time is not counted as time
worked and is paid at the employee’s regular rate of pay.

3. Employees on unpaid leave are not eligible for holiday pay.  In addition,
employees absent without approved leave or on any leave without pay, the day
before or the day following a holiday, are not eligible for holiday pay.

4. When a holiday falls within an employee’s paid authorized leave, the employee
will be paid for that holiday and not charged the PTO time.  An employee will not
be allowed to receive both PTO and holiday pay for the same day.

5. Eligible employees scheduled to work on a holiday will be paid for the time
worked and paid for the holiday at the employee’s regular rate of pay.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 18

76.5 Jury Leave

The District recognizes jury duty as a civic responsibility of everyone. When summoned
for jury duty, an employee will be granted leave to perform their duty as a juror. If the
employee is excused from jury duty during their regular work hours, they are expected to
report to work promptly.

Employees’ receive regular pay for the first three days of jury duty if they were
scheduled to work and a juror service certificate is submitted. Beginning the fourth day
and thereafter, employees as a juror are paid $50.00 per day by the State of Colorado for
state, district or county court jury duty. For jury duty in excess of three days, employees
receive the difference between jury duty pay and their regular pay up to a maximum of 10
days (80 hours). Jury duty leave beyond this time is without pay from the District.

76.6 Medical Leave of Absence

A medical leave of absence of not more than three months may currently be granted to
full time employees. This unpaid leave is for absences arising from illness, injury or
pregnancy.

For a medical leave to be granted, the following conditions must be met:

1. The employee has completed ninety (90) days of employment with the District.

2. The District Library Director is notified by the employee as soon as possible of
the need for medical leave.

3. The employee submits to the supervisor a written statement from the attending
physician outlining the reason for leave and the estimated time needed. (The
District reserves the right to obtain a District doctor's opinion.)

3.

4. Approvals are obtained from the Branch Librarian and District Library Director
prior to the leave.

All available sick leave and earned vacation are used at the beginning of the leave of
absence.

When the estimated period of leave is less than three months, and an employee needs to
extend the leave, another doctor's statement is required indicating the new estimated
length of leave.

An employee ready to return to work from leave must present a doctor's statement
indicating ability to return to work.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 19

The District may reinstate an employee ready to return from a medical leave of absence
when, in the opinion of the District, it is practical to do so. The District does not
guarantee reinstatement of an employee to the former job. When the employee is
available to return to work, the employee is free to apply for any vacancy available and
may be considered along with other applicants.

The District currently continues medical and life insurance benefits for an employee on
leave for a maximum of three months as long as the employee continues to pay the
employee's portion of the premium.

Vacation and sick leave will not accrue during a medical leave of absence. Holidays,
funeral pay or employer's jury duty pay will not be granted during the leave. Employees
who fail to return at the expiration of their authorized leave will be terminated.

76.7 Military Leave

Employees granted a military leave of absence are reinstated and paid in accordance with
the laws governing veterans' re-employment rights.

76.8 Parental Leave Without Pay

Parental leave without pay may be available to full time employees who wish to take time
off from work to fulfill family obligations relating directly to the birth or adoption of a
child.

After the completion of 12 months of service, employees may request up to three months
of unpaid parental leave. The leave must be concluded within the six-month period
following the birth or adoption of a child. Employees must take any available vacation at
the beginning of the parental leave of absence.

Employees must request leave from their immediate supervisor at least one month prior
to the expected date of the beginning of the leave. Requests for parental leave are
evaluated based on a number of factors, including anticipated operational requirements,
and staffing considerations during the proposed period of absence. Leaves must be
approved by the supervisor and the District Library Director and/or Human Resource
Director.

The District may continue to provide health insurance benefits until the end of the month
in which the approved parental leave begins. At that time, the employee will be
responsible for the full costs of their health insurance benefits if the employee wishes
coverage to continue. The employer may resume payment of the costs of these benefits
when the employee returns to active employment.

Benefit accruals (e.g., vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits) are suspended during
the leave and may resume upon return to active employment.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 20

When parental leave ends, the employee may return to the same position, if available, or
to a similar one for which qualified, where practical. If the previous position or a
comparable one is not available, the employee may apply for another position that is
available and suitable. The employer cannot guarantee reinstatement

If an employee fails to report to work promptly at the end of the approved leave period,
the employee is terminated.

76.9 Personal Leave of Absence without Pay

There may be a time that requiresIf an employee needs to be absent your absence from
work for non-medical, personal business, they may request leave from their supervisor.
Such unpaid leave may be requested from your department head. Approval is based upon
such factors as the reason for the requested leave, length of leave desired, your the
department's workload, and your the employee’s work record, and your length of service.

All your earned vacation must be taken before you leave is begunstart your leave. If your
the approved leave goes into the next month, you the employee must need to make
insurance premium payment arrangements with the Library Director or Human Resource
Department.

There are no guarantees that we the employee can be placed you back in your the old job
- or a similar one - when you the employee returns from personal leave.

76.10 Personal Time-off (PTO) Guideline

The Library District provides time off and limited pay continuation for leaves such as
vacation, personal needs, and family/medical leave.  All PTO leave must be preapproved
by the Branch Librarian and/or the immediate supervisor. The decision may be appealed
to the District Library Director. Personal time off for full-time employees accrues every
two weeks under the following schedule:

Personal Time off Accrual Schedule

Length of Continuous
Employment Service

PTO Accrual Rate

(based on 40 hours per weekhpw[JM5])

(0-2 years) 3.08 hour per pay period (10 days annually)

(2-5 years) 4.62 hour per pay period (15 days annually)

(5-10 years) 6.15 hour per pay period (20 days annually)

(10-15 years) 7.69 hour per pay period (25 days annually)



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 21

(15 years plus) 9.23 hour per pay period (30 days annually)

The maximum amount an employee can bank is 400 hours. Any hours over
that amount will be returned to the District.

The District Library Board of Trustees may award additional PTO.

Employees working less than twenty (20) hours per week are not eligible to accrue PTO.
Employees who work an annualized average of less than forty (40) hours per week accrue
personal time off at a prorated amount from the above schedule.  For example, part-time
employees, working twenty (20) hours per week, accrue PTO leave at ½ the full-time
rate. Full time employees working less than forty (40) hours per week will accrue
personal time off at a prorated amount.

Every eligible employee, upon hire, will be given 16 hours of PTO time. This is for
emergency purposes only. Employees may not schedule PTO that leaves them with less
than 16 hours of PTO in their bank. Employees who use this time for emergency purpose
must document the reason for the emergency (i.e. doctor’s note, etc.). If an employee
leaves employment or changes to an employment status that does not accrue PTO before
the anniversary of their hire date, the 16 hours will not be paid at termination of
employment, although any other hours accrued will be paid. After one full year of
employment, the initial 16 hours of PTO will be fully payable to the employee upon
termination of employment.

Personal time off is accrued from the initial day of employment and continues during the
paid time portion of the leave.  Any unpaid leave will not accrue towards any employee
benefits including PTO.  If a discrepancy appears in an employee’s PTO record, the
employee is responsible for clarifying the error with the District Library Director or
Human Resource Specialist.  Corrections to a PTO record must occur within the year for
which PTO leave was accrued or deducted.  All earned unused PTO accruals are paid to
employees upon termination.

An employee who moves from an employee status that accrues PTO to a status that does
not accrue PTO may use accrued PTO until it is gone (unless the employee has worked
for the District for under one calendar year). When an amount equaling less than 15
minutes remains, the remaining amount will be returned to the District. An employee
who has worked for the District for under one calendar year may use earned PTO minus
the 16 hours of PTO given to them at the beginning of their employment with the
District.

Since PTO requests can involve other pay continuation plans such as short and long-term
disability and worker’s compensation, employees are expected to comply with any
certification requirements under those plans (i.e., a doctor’s certification).  Failure to
meet certification requirements could delay or reduce benefit amounts paid.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 22

NOTE:  Employees should be careful to plan for and bank time for unforeseen leave
events.  Failure to do so could leave an employee without supplemental pay during a
severe medical or family leave crisis.

76.11 Voluntary Personal Time Off Donation Program

Clear Creek County Library District Voluntary Personal Time Off Donation Program is
created to provide a continuing income to eligible employees who require personal time
off due to illness or family emergencies.  The Program also gives employees the
opportunity to help other employees who experience a hardship(s).  This may be
accomplished by donating a portion of their accrued Personal Time off (PTO) to an
employee in need.  Donated PTO is based on hours and will be paid out at the recipient’s
regular rate of pay.  This program is a case by case employee anonymity system. No
employee may donate to this program if it brings his/her accrual time to under 40 hours.

76.11.1 Case By Case - Donation for Individual Employee:

The need for requested PTO is established as an extraordinary event such as, but not
limited to:

An eligible employee or family member’s serious illness, injury or disability, or
continuing treatment of a serious illness or injury.

Employees may choose to donate a portion of their PTO hours to an individual or to the
program.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 23

CHAPTER SEVEN

87.0 BENEFITS

87.1 Benefits General Guidelines

87.1.1 Full-time Status:

In addition to leave benefits, all full-time employees are currently granted offered the
following Library District benefits:

1. MembershipCoverage3 in under the Library District’s health and dental plans.

2. Membership Coverage inunder the Library District’s short-term disability and
long-term disability plans.

3. Coverage under the Library District retirement plan (Mandatory, after one year of
continuous service).

4. Group life insurance with the Library District.

5. Library District Deferred Compensation Plan (Voluntary).

6. Other coverage which may be offered by the Library District from time to time,
such as vision insurance.

87.1.2 Part-Time Status I:

A part-time employee normally working twenty (20) or more, but less than thirty (30)
hours per week, is granted offered the following benefits:

1. Library District Deferred Compensation Plan (Voluntary).

2. Library District Retirement Plan (Mandatory, after one year of continuous
service)

In the event the following handbook information conflicts with the plan document the
latter governs.

87.2 Health and Life Insurance

The District Library Director or Library District’s Human Resources Specialist furnishes
detailed information concerning these programs.

3 It’s not really membership but coverage.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 24

87.3 Disability Programs

The Library District currently offers both short & long-term disability insurance to
eligible employees.

87.3.1 Short-Term Disability:

Full-time employees are eligible for Short-Term Disability Insurance. The plan only
partially covers an employee’s weekly wages and may be supplemented with any earned
accruals. Applications for short-term disability should be obtained and returned to the
District Library Director or Human Resource Specialist as soon as possible, but no later
than the 15th day of a disability. If employees are contributing to the payment of
their health care premiums, they then must pay that portion of the premium to
remain eligible for coverage.

87.3.2 Long-Term Disability:

A full-time employee is currently eligible for long-term disability benefits after the 90
days of short-term disability expires.  While on long-term disability the employee must
pay all premium costs for medical, dental, and life insurance.  Employees may be eligible
to return to work on a part-time or light duty schedule depending on the requirements of
the job.  Applications for long-term disability may be obtained from the Human Resource
Specialist and should be returned prior to the end of the 90th day.

For a complete explanation of benefits, employees should refer to the short and long-term
disability guidelines.

87.4 Credit Union

All Clear Creek County Library District employees are eligible to join the Colorado State
Employees Credit Union.  Interested employees should contact the Credit Union
personally to initiate membership.  Any participating employee is eligible for payroll
deduction for the Credit Union program.

87.5 Deferred Compensation

Employees may voluntarily join the Clear Creek County Library District Deferred
Compensation Plan.  The employee should contact the District Library Director or
Human Resource Specialist for more details.

87.6 Training

The Library District may provide reimbursement for certain training-related activities that
are pre-approved.  Training is defined as seminars, workshops, conferences and other
educational training programs.  The training sessions must be job-related, promote career
development by gaining technical and managerial information and enhance the Library



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 25

District’s service delivery.  This type of training is generally short-term, in which a grade
is not given and is not credited toward a degree program.

All payments for training related registration fees, lodging, meals and transportation must
be in accordance with the Library District’s travel guidelines.

87.7 Education (Tuition Assistance)

Tuition assistance may be available for full-time Clear Creek County Library District
employees who have been with the District for more than one year. The course(s) must be
job-related, and there may be minimum grade requirements. Courses must be pre-
approved by the District Library Director and funding must be available, or
reimbursement will not be considered. If interested, contact the District Library Director.

87.8 Retirement

Library District employees working an average of 20 or more hours per week during the
course of a year are required to participate in the Library District Retirement Plan upon
completion of one year of continuous full-time or part-time regular employment.  The
employee and the Library District each are required to contribute an equal percentage of
the employee's pay.  If an employee terminates before becoming eligible for retirement,
the employee is granted the amount contributed to the retirement fund and the portion
contributed by the Library District based on a vestment formula.  Full information
regarding the retirement plan is available from the Library Director or Human Resource
Specialist.

87.9 PTO/Benefits Reimbursement Policy

The Library District pays benefits for employees one month in advance based on their
normally scheduled hours. If an employee does not have enough PTO time accrued to
make up the difference between their scheduled hours and hours worked in a week, then
the employee is responsible for reimbursing the Library District for benefits paid but not
earned.

If an employee does not work the minimum number of hours to be considered a full-time
employee in a week, then the entire week’s benefit cost must be reimbursed to the
Library District. This does not apply to employees who have applied for and been
granted Medical Leave Without Pay (see Medical Leave Without Pay Policy).

Not paying back the Library District for these benefits may be considered cause for
termination.

If an employee does not work a minimum of 20 hours per week, the employee will not
earn any PTO for the week. If the employee works 20 hours or more, PTO accrual will
be prorated for the week.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 26

CHAPTER EIGHT

98.0 SAFETY

98.1 Alcohol and Drugs

Alert and rational behavior is required for the safe and adequate performance of job
duties.

Therefore, working after the apparent use of alcohol, a controlled substance or abuse of
any other substance is prohibited. Furthermore, the possession, purchase, or consumption
(use) or sale of a controlled substance or alcohol on District premises or while conducting
District business is prohibited.

Anti-Violence --Public Employer with Searches
Employees must not engage in intimidation, threats, or hostile behaviors, physical/verbal
abuse, vandalism, arson, sabotage, or any other act which in management's opinion is
inappropriate to the workplace. In addition, bizarre or offensive comments regarding
violent events and/or behavior are not tolerated.

The District prohibits the possession or use of unconcealed weapons and the use of
concealed weapons on District property, regardless of whether or not the person is
licensed to carry the weapon. This guideline applies to all District employees, contract
and temporary employees, visitors and customers on District property, regardless of
whether or not they are licensed to carry a concealed weapon.

"District property" covered by this guideline includes all District-owned or leased
buildings and surrounding areas such as sidewalks, walkways, driveways, and parking
lots under the District’s ownership or control. This guideline also applies to all District-
owned or leased vehicles and all vehicles that come onto District property.

"Dangerous weapons" include, but are not limited to, handguns, firearms, explosives,
and knives. If employees have a question regarding whether an item is covered by this
guideline, they should call Human Resources. Employees have the responsibility to make
sure that any item not specifically listed above that is possessed by the employee is not
prohibited by this guideline.

The District reserves the right at any time and at its discretion to search all District-
owned or leased vehicles and all vehicles, packages, containers, briefcases, purses,
lockers, desks, enclosures, and persons entering its property, for the purpose of
determining whether any weapon has been brought onto its property or premises in
violation of this guideline. Any employee failing or refusing to promptly permit a search
under this guideline will be subject to discipline up to and including termination of
employment.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 27

Any behavior listed above should be immediately reported to a supervisor or Human
Resources representative. Complaints will receive attention and the situation will be
investigated. Based on the results of the inquiry, action will be taken which management
believes is appropriate. Employees should directly contact law enforcement personnel if
they believe there is an imminent threat to the safety and health of employees or property.

98.2 Safety/Reporting of Injury

The District is committed to a safe work environment for employees. Employees should
report any unsafe practices or conditions to their supervisor.

If employees are injured on the job, no matter how minor, they must immediately report
this fact in writing to the Branch Librarian.

If medical treatment for an on-the-job injury is needed, it must be obtained from one of
the District’s designated physicians. If not, the employee may be responsible for the cost
of medical treatment.

98.3 Liability Coverage

Employees have various liability protections under Colorado law and insurance policies
held by the Library District.  If any type of claim is made, the Branch Librarian and/or
District Library Director should be advised immediately.  If involved in an accident,
please follow the accident reporting guidelines.

98.4 Traffic Actions

All work-related traffic matters and traffic tickets are the responsibility of the employee.
If a court appearance is necessary because of a violation that is the fault of the employee,
the employee must handle the situation on his or her own time[JM6].

If the traffic matter or traffic ticket results in personal injury or property damage it should
be reported immediately, in writing, to the Branch Librarian and District Library
Director.  The District Library Director should contact the Library District attorney for
immediate advice regarding the accident. Injury reports should be filed with the Branch
Librarian.

98.5 Seat Belt Resolution

Failure of Library District employees to use seat belts while operating Library District
vehicles in accordance with the State of Colorado seat belt law is considered a violation
of safety regulations.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 28

CHAPTER NINE

109.0LIBRARY DISTRICT TRAVEL GUIDELINES

109.01 Approval for Travel

Library District officers and employees may be reimbursed for all business- related
expenses and travel when such activity is budgeted, is official Library District business,
and has prior approval from his/her immediate supervisor.  It is the responsibility of
every supervisor to ensure that employees under their jurisdiction comply with the
provisions of the Clear Creek County Library District Travel procedures and that monies
required to pay expenses are available within the individual budgets of the departments
concerned.  Any unbudgeted travel for training or business purposes must have prior
approval by the District Library Board.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 29

CHAPTER TEN

10.0 EMPLOYMENT

10.1 EEO/Harassment Policy

The Library District is dedicated to the principles of equal employment opportunity.  We
prohibit unlawful discrimination against applicants or employees on the basis of age over
40, race, sex, color, religion, national origin, disability, genetic information, or any other
applicable status protected by state or local law.

10.2 ADA and Religious Accommodation

The Library District will make reasonable accommodation for qualified individuals with
known disabilities and employees whose work requirements interfere with a religious
belief unless doing so would result in an undue hardship to the Library District or a direct
threat.  Employees needing such accommodation are instructed to contact their supervisor
or the Library Director immediately.

10.3 EEO Harassment

The Library District strives to maintain a work environment free of unlawful harassment.
In doing so, the District prohibits unlawful harassment because of age over 40, race, sex,
color, religion, national origin, disability, genetic information, or any other applicable
status protected by state or local law.

Unlawful harassment includes verbal or physical conduct that has the purpose or effect of
substantially interfering with and individual’s work performance or creating an
intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment.  Actions based on and individual’s
age over 40, race, sex, color, religion, national origin, disability, genetic information, or
any other applicable status protected by state or local law will not be tolerated.
Prohibited behavior may include but is not limited to the following:

 Written form such as cartoons, e-mail, posters, drawings, or photographs.

 Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory comments, slurs, or jokes.

 Physical conduct such as assault, or blocking an individual’s movements.

This policy applies to all employees including managers, supervisors, co-workers, and
non-employees such as customers, clients, vendors, consultants, etc.

10.4 Sexual Harassment

Because sexual harassment raises issues that are to some extent unique in comparison to
other harassment, the Library District believes it warrants separate emphasis.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 30

The Library District strongly opposes sexual harassment and inappropriate sexual
conduct.  Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for
sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, when:

 Submission to such conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of
employment.

 Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions
affecting an individual’s employment.

 Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an
individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
work environment.

All employees are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and businesslike
manner at all times.  Conduct which may violate this policy includes, but is not limited
to, sexually implicit or explicit communications whether in:

 Written form, such as cartoons, posters, calendars, notes, letters, e-mail.

 Verbal form, such as comments, jokes, foul or obscene language of a sexual
nature, gossiping, or questions about another’s sex life, or repeated unwanted
requests for dates.

 Physical gestures and other nonverbal behavior, such as unwelcome touching,
grabbing, fondling, kissing, massaging, and brushing up against another’s body.

10.5 Complaint Procedure

If you believe there has been a violation of the EEO policy or harassment based on the
protected classes outlined above, including sexual harassment, please use the following
complaint procedure.  The Library District expects employees to make a timely
complaint to enable the District to investigate and correct any behavior that may be in
violation of this policy.

Report the incident to your immediate supervisor or the Library Director, who will
investigate the matter and take corrective action.  Your complaint will be kept as
confidential as practicable.  If you prefer not to go to either of these individuals with our
complaint, you should report the incident to a member of the District Library Board.
The Library District prohibits retaliation against an employee for filing a complaint under
this policy or for assisting in a complaint investigation.  If you perceive retaliation for
making a compliant or your participation in the investigation, please follow the complaint
procedure outlined above.  The situation will be investigated.

If the Library District determines that an employee’s behavior is in violation of this
policy, disciplinary action will be taken, up to and including termination of employment.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 31

10.5.1 Filing a Retaliation Complaint

A retaliation complaint may be filed directly with the Library Director or the District
Library Board.  The claim may be submitted anonymously if the complainant so chooses.
To submit an anonymous complaint, send a written or typed complaint to the following
address:

Clear Creek County Library District, P.O. Box 338, Georgetown, CO 80444

45.

4 This violates the law, you cannot put time limits on this.
5 This is procedural and does not need to be in the HB.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 32



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 33

CHAPTER ELEVEN

11.0 SEPARATION

11.1 Retirement

Clear Creek County Library District, through the Library District Retirement Plan
provides for retirement benefits in accordance with the provisions of the plan6.

11.2 Return of Library District Property

Any employee leaving Library District service, regardless of the reason, must
immediately return any Library District property they may have in their possession.

11.3 Exit Interviews — Separation Employees

The District Library Director or Human Resource Specialist conducts exit interviews
with employees who separate from Library District service.  The purpose of this
interview is to determine the reason for separation, and to advise the employee of benefits
upon termination.

8.9 PTO/Benefits Reimbursement Policy adopted 3-10-2009
7.4 Holiday Leave Policy revised 3-10-2009
7.10, 7.11 & 7.11.1 pertaining to PTO Guidelines and Donations revised 8-11-2009
4.2, 4.3 Full Time II, Part Time I Employee revised 1-08-2013.
6.5, Performance Appraisal revised 3-10-2015.
5.4.1 Overtime & 6.2 Attendance/Time Records revised 8-11-2015.

6 This is a benefit, not necessarily about separation.



Clear Creek County Library District Employee Handbook
Adopted: 01-02-2009Draft 09-13-2016

Updated: 03/10/2015 Page 34

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT
I HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF OUR THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK DATED
____________.

I UNDERSTAND THAT NEITHER THE EMPLOYER NOR MYSELF IS
COMMITTED TO AN EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP FOR A FIXED
PERIOD OF TIME. EMPLOYMENT WITH CLEAR CREEK COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT IS AT-WILL. BOTH MANAGEMENT AND I HAVE THE
RIGHT TO TERMINATE THIS EMPLOYMENT AT ANY TIME FOR ANY
REASON. THE LANGUAGE USED IN THIS HANDBOOK AND ANY VERBAL
STATEMENTS OF MANAGEMENT ARE NOT INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE
A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, NOR
ARE THEY A GUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT FOR ANY SPECIFIC
DURATION.

I UNDERSTAND THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE OF CLEAR CREEK COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT, OTHER THAN THE DISTRICT LIBRARY DIRECTOR,
HAS AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT OF EMPLOYMENT
FOR ANY SPECIFIED PERIOD AND SUCH AGREEMENT MUST BE IN
WRITING, SIGNED BY THE DISTRICT LIBRARY DIRECTOR AND MYSELF.
WE HAVE NOT ENTERED INTO SUCH AN AGREEMENT.

FURTHER, I UNDERSTAND THAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS HANDBOOK
ARE SUMMARY GUIDELINES FOR EMPLOYEES AND THEREFORE NOT
ALL-INCLUSIVE. THIS HANDBOOK SUPERSEDES ALL PREVIOUSLY
ISSUED EDITIONS. EXCEPT FOR THE AT-WILL NATURE OF
EMPLOYMENT, THE LIBRARY DISTRICT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO
SUSPEND, TERMINATE, INTERPRET OR CHANGE ANY OR ALL OF THE
GUIDELINES MENTIONED, ALONG WITH ANY OTHER PROCEDURES,
PRACTICES, BENEFITS OR OTHER PROGRAMS OF THE LIBRARY
DISTRICT THESE CHANGES MAY OCCUR AT ANY TIME, WITH OR
WITHOUT NOTICE.

Signature of Employee Date

SUPERVISOR SIGNATURE



CLEAR CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

BUDGET
FOR THE

CALENDAR YEAR 2017

WITH
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS FOR THE

YEARS 2015, 2016, & 2017

Clear Creek County Library District
Board of Trustees

Gwynne Ellen Stephenson
Kate Foy

Elaine McWain
Lee Ann Cox
Judy Caldwell
Vickie Colle

Library Director and Budget Officer
Sue Lathrop



BUDGET MESSAGE

IMPORTANT FEATURES OF THE BUDGET

This is the budget for the Clear Creek County Library District.  The District has a
2.0 mill levy for the year 2017. The Library District believes that its revenues are not
subject to TABOR and other statutory limitations.

A significant component of the 2017 budget is that the Library District will be
doing preparatory work for major building repairs and renovation at the John Tomay
Memorial Library in Georgetown and landscaping including the installation of new
drainage to protect the building at the Idaho Springs Public Library. We also are planning
for a significant budget reduction in the coming years.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting -- The proposed 2017 budget of the Clear Creek County
Library District has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to government units.  The Library District uses the modified
accrual basis of accounting in governmental funds.  Basis of accounting refers to the
specific time at which revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are recorded when
they are received in cash or become susceptible to accrual, i.e. those that become both
measurable and available during the year.  Revenues collected by another governmental
unit are considered measurable and are recognized at that time.  Property taxes for 2017
are considered measurable at December 31, 2016, and are accrued as receivable.
However, since they are not available to finance current operations, they are also
recorded as deferred revenues.

Budget Adoption – Prior to January 1st, an annual budget and appropriation
resolution is adopted by the Clear Creek County Library District Board of Trustees in
accordance with Colorado Budget Law.  The budget is formally integrated as a
management control device during the year.  All annual appropriations lapse at the end of
the year.

Fund Balance – The Library District desires to maintain a satisfactory level of
unappropriated fund balance in order to ensure a continued strong financial position.
This balance will maintain an adequate level for cash flow purposes, to ensure that annual
budgets are balanced as required by law, and to carry the District through economic
fluctuations that may reduce annual revenues.



DISTRICT DEBT

The Library District does not have any debt or lease purchase agreements.

SERVICES TO BE DELIVERED

The Clear Creek County Library District will provide library services to Clear
Creek County by maintaining libraries in Idaho Springs and Georgetown, Colorado.

This budget was adopted and approved by the Clear Creek County Library District on
Dec. 13, 2016.

Attest: _________________________________
Lee Ann Cox, President



                                Clear Creek County Library District Budget
2017 Proposed Budget

Description Actual Budgeted Estimated
2015 2016 2016 2017

1 ASSESSED VALUATION 589,696,850 587,798,220 587,798,220 519,184,220 1-Dec
2 ASSESSED MILL LEVY 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000
3 MILL LEVY ABATEMENT 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
4 TOTAL MILL LEVY 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000
5
6 OPERATING REVENUES
7
8           Real Property Tax 1,178,605 1,175,596 1,175,596 1,038,368
9           Delinquent Tax 640 0 637 0

10           Delinquent Interest 178 0 180 0
11           Specific Ownership Tax A 7,726 6,000 6,500 6,500
12           Specific Ownership Tax F 39,849 31,000 31,000 35,000
13           Interest Property Tax 1,060 600 762 600
14           Interest Income 2,753 2,000 5,000 4,000
15           Grant Income 7,750 8,000 11,000 3,500
16           Program Income 1,489 200 350 200
17           Retirement Refunds 0 0 0 0

17a           Friends Donations 0 0 0 0
18           Other 2,187 0 1,433 0
19
20      Total Operating Revenue 1,242,237 1,223,396 1,232,458 1,088,168

1



Description Actual Budgeted Estimated
2015 2016 2016 2017

GENERAL OPERATING FUND
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

21           Library District Administration
22                     Operating 715,676 868,556 653,542 818,181
23           TOTAL Library District Administration 715,676 868,556 653,542 818,181
24
25           District Programs
26                     Operating 164,980 190,325 126,580 126,175
27                     Capital 0 0 0 0
28           TOTAL District Programs 164,980 190,325 126,580 126,175
29
30           Building and Maintenance
31                     Operating 23,382 49,200 32,406 34,900
32                     Capital 3,300 150,000 0 150,000
33           TOTAL Building and Maintenance 26,682 199,200 32,406 184,900
34
35           District Office
36                     Operating 10,039 21,350 12,405 13,000
37           TOTAL District Office 10,039 21,350 12,405 13,000
38
39            Idaho Springs Public Library
40                     Operating 46,333 56,300 41,405 44,520
41           TOTAL ISPL Expenditures 46,333 56,300 41,405 44,520
42 1,231,346
43            John Tomay Memorial Library 150000
44                     Operating 40,402 48,200 33,620 44,570 40000
45           TOTAL JTML Expenditures 40,402 48,200 33,620 44,570 50000
46
47      Total Estimated Expenditures 1,004,112 1,383,931 899,958 1,231,346 991,346
48      Revenue Over (under) Expenditures 238,125 -160,535 332,500 -143,178
49      Fund Balance Beginning of Year 1,224,987 1,479,882 1,479,882 1,812,382
50      Fund Balance End of Year 1,479,882 1,319,347 1,812,382 1,669,205

Required 3% reserve is $

2



Budget Revenue and Expense Worksheet Library District Administration
Description Actual Budgeted Estimated

2015 2016 2016 2017

50           Library District Administration
51                Contingency 0 50,000 0 50,000
52                Grants-Operating 0 0 5,000 0
53                Insurance 12,495 15,000 12,918 15,000
54                Legal and Professional Dues/Fees
55                     Accounting & Audit 5,100 5,200 5,200 5,200
56                     Bank fees 856 1,000 400 800
57                     Consulting 4,080 20,000 5,000 20,000
58                     Legal & Professional 3,065 35,000 4,000 35,000
59                     MSEC (HR Services) 1,510 2,000 15,000 10,000
60                     Payroll 2,632 3,000 2,800 3,000
61                     SDA 1,426 1,500 1,059 1,500
62                     Library Consortiums 0 0 0 0
63                Office/Storage/Archives Rent 11,250 18,000 18,000 18,000
64 Salaries 511,064 523,103 437,789 487,681
65 Benefits 126,782 157,753 109,376 135,000
66                Treasurer's Fees 35,416 37,000 37,000 37,000
67
68           TOTAL Library District Administration 715,676 868,556 653,542 818,181

3



Budget Revenue and Expense Worksheet District Programs
Description Actual Budgeted Estimated

2015 2016 2016 2017

69           District Shared Programs/Services
70                Marketing
71                     Advertisements 1,010 1,750 1,200 1,000
72                     Legal Notices 23 75 30 75
73                     Marketing supplies 3,322 1,500 50 500
74                Newsletter
75                     Postage 2,546 2,600 1,000 1,000
76                     Printing Supplies 1671 2,000 1000 1,000
77                Staff Development 12,235 12,000 7,000 9,000
78                Summer Reading & Programs
79                     District Programs 12,838 13,000 4,000 5,600
80                     Summer Reading 8,090 9,500 3,500 3,500
81                     Reading Carnival 1,465 1,500 400 400
82                     Grants for Library Books 1,018 2,500 0 0
83                     Outreach 72 1,000 0 100
84                Technology
85                     Circulation 17,720 20,000 15,000 19,000
86                     Databases 20,604 28,000 20,000 15,000
87                     Hardware 16,128 17,000 15,000 9,000
88                     Internet/Wireless/Cell 16,290 18,000 16,500 17,100
89                     Networking 0 1,000 0 1,000
90                     Software 2,874 3,000 3,000 3,000
91                     Support (Non-Circ) 0 1,000 0 1,000
92                     Web Page/E-Mail 76 400 900 900
93                     Copier/Printing 22,472 24,500 15,000 15,000
94                Digital Content 24,526 30,000 23,000 23,000
95                     E-Audio (Books)
96                     E-Books
97                     E-Music
98                     E-Video
99                     E-Apps

100                Special Projects 0 0 0 0
101           TOTAL District Programs - Operating 164,980 190,325 126,580 126,175
102
103                     Technology - Capital 0 0 0 0
104           TOTAL District Programs - Capital 0 0 0 0

4



Budget Revenue and Expense Worksheet Building Maintenance
Description Actual Budgeted Estimated

2015 2016 2016 2017

105           Building Maintenance
106                Utilities
107                     Phone 6,636 6,500 6,900 7,200
108                     Power 12,492 14,000 11,700 13,000
109                     Trash 1,202 1,500 1,200 1,500
110                     Water 3,052 3,200 3,200 3,200
111                     Archive Building Costs 0 24,000 9,406 10,000
112                Special Projects 0 0 0 0
113           TOTAL Building Maintenance - Operating 23,382 49,200 32,406 34,900
114
115                Capital Building Repair (over $1,000) 3,300 100,000 0 100,000
116                Capital 50,000 0 50,000
117                Grants-Capital 0 0 0
118           TOTAL Building Maintenance - Capital 3,300 150,000 0 150,000

Budget Revenue and Expense Worksheet District Office
Description Actual Budgeted Estimated

2015 2016 2016 2017

          District Office/Archives
119                Dues & Registration 439 1,000 750 0
120                Office Equipment 2,509 1,500 1,775 1,500
121                Maintenance

                    Alarm 0 0 0 0
122                     Cleaning 0 500 0 1,200
123                     Equipment and Repair 930 2,000 180 1,000
124                     Furniture 442 5,000 5,000 3,000
125                Office/Operating-Supplies 1,190 5,000 1,000 1,000
126                Operating-Events 861 950 500 900
127                Operating-Materials 1551 1500 1500 1500
128                Postage 223 700 200 400
129                Travel 1,894 3,200 1,500 2,500
130
131           TOTAL District Office 10,039 21,350 12,405 13,000

5



6



Budget Revenue and Expense Worksheet ISPL
Description Actual Budgeted Estimated

2015 2016 2016 2017

132           Idaho Springs Public Library
133                Courier 0 400 375 370
134                Dues & Registration 571 300 300 0
135                Maintenance
136                     Alarm 150 500 150 200
137                     Cleaning 659 1,600 1,300 1,500
138                     Equipment & Repair (non-capital) 7,219 6,000 8,000 3,000
139                     Furniture 0 1,000 500 500
140                     Snow Removal 195 2,000 500 1,000
141                     Yard 855 1,200 30 250
142                     Elevator 0 3,500
143                Office Supplies 4,105 5,000 4,000 4,000
144                Operating-Events

145
Printed Materials (Library Cards,
Bookmarks, pencils etc) 5 200 0 0

146                      Library Events 24 1,000 300 0
147                      Volunteer/Staff Meetings 297 700 700 100
148                Operating-Materials 31,621 35,000 24,800 30,000
149                     Audio
150                     Books
151                     Electronic Subscriptions
152                     McNaughton
153                     Multi-Media
154                     Music
155                     Paper Subscriptions
156                     Software/Games
157                     Video
158
159                Postage 29 400 50 100
160                Travel 603 1,000 400 0
161
161           TOTAL Idaho Springs 46,333 56,300 41,405 44,520

7



Budget Revenue and Expense Worksheet JTML
Description Actual Budgeted Estimated

2015 2016 2016 2017

162           John Tomay Memorial Library
163                Courier 370 500 370 370
164                Dues & Registration 25 300 200 0
165                Maintenance
166                     Alarm 150 400 300 200
167                     Cleaning 191 1,700 800 1,700
168                     Equipment & Repair (Non-Capital) 3,888 6,000 3,000 6,000
169                     Furniture 95 3,000 1,500 3,000
170                     Snow Removal 548 1,300 1,200 1,000
171                     Yard 615 1,000 1,000 1,000

                    Elevator 0 0 0 2,000
172                Office Supplies 7,356 3,000 3,000 4,000
173                Operating-Events

174
Printed Materials (Library Cards,
Bookmarks, pencils etc) 0 200 0 0

175                      Library Events 474 1,500 50 0
176                      Volunteer/Staff Meetings 0 300 100 100
177                Operating-Materials 26,147 28,000 21,600 25,000
178                     Audio
179                     Books
180                     Electronic Subscriptions
181                     McNaughton
182                     Multi-Media
183                     Music
184                     Paper Subscriptions
185                     Software/Games
186                     Video
187                Postage 0 200 200 200
188                Travel 543 800 300 0
189
190           TOTAL John Tomay 40,402 48,200 33,620 44,570
191

8



9



10



construction costs
consulting/architectural
contingency

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



Prepared by Mountain States Employers Council, Inc. 1

Clear Creek County
Library District
Compensation Project
Methodology Report

October 2016

COMPENSATION

CONSULTING

SERVICES

PREPARED BY:
Candy Siderius, CCP, SPHR
Manager
303.223.5409
csiderius@msec.org



Prepared by Mountain States Employers Council, Inc. 2

Introduction
Clear Creek County Library District (CCCLD) asked Mountain States Employers Council,
Inc.’s (MSEC) consultants to conduct a salary survey market analysis, update salary ranges
for their employees based on the data collected, and compare current rates of pay with the
identified labor market.  This report presents the methodology we follow when designing and
reviewing compensation systems.  Highlights of this process are included below.

 Develop Strategic Approach
Working with the Library Director, we examined the mission and values of the
organization and how the total compensation system should align with CCCLD’s short-
and long-term objectives.

 Compare Positions to Salary Surveys
To identify the most relevant match between CCCLD’s position and the survey job
description, we consider factors such as the degree of knowledge/skills, job family
progression, span of control, reporting relationships, scope of decision-making authority,
types of decisions made, impact on the organization of such decisions, and autonomy.
While exact comparisons may not always occur, we took care to assure that a significant
degree of comparability existed before using the survey data.  We strive for a 70 to 80
percent match between the incumbent’s job responsibilities and the duties listed in the
surveys. We also solicited input and feedback from the Library Director regarding the
quality of the survey job match.

 Identify Appropriate Salary Surveys and Data Lines
MSEC’s consultants use well-established salary surveys as the sources for market data.
The specific surveys and the data lines used in this analysis are as follows:

o MSEC 2016 Colorado Benchmark Compensation Survey - Total Responses and
Denver/Boulder data lines
379 jobs; 429 participants; 40,089 reported employee pay rates

o MSEC 2016 Public Employers Compensation Survey – Total Responses and
Denver/Boulder data lines
442 jobs; 156 participants; 40,980 reported employee pay rates

o MSEC 2016 Information Technology Compensation Survey – Total Responses
and Denver/Boulder data lines
82 jobs; 414 participants; 8,065 reported employee pay rates

After we obtained a final job match, we collected the salary information.  We also
considered the number of incumbent pay rates reported in the sample.  We made an
effort to use data with 30 rates or more whenever possible in order to have a more
statistically accurate average.



Prepared by Mountain States Employers Council, Inc. 3

 Adjust Salary Survey Data
Since the effective dates of the salary survey data varied by survey, MSEC aged the
information and brought it forward to a common date of January 1, 2017.  We used an
adjustment factor that represents the annual percent of salary movement for state and
local government workers.

The U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, compiles and publishes the
Employment Cost Index (ECI) every quarter.  The ECI reflects the percentage change in
employer costs for employee compensation.  The current ECI rate is 1.7 percent for
government workers.  We prorated this factor based on the period from each survey’s
information collection date to January 1, 2017.

 Develop Salary Grades and Range Structures
Our initial step in developing a salary range structure included establishment of salary
grade groupings.  Jobs were reviewed from an internal perspective and clustered together
according to similar skill, effort, and responsibility, as well as the survey market data.

We then developed a salary range for each grade, which includes a minimum, midpoint,
and maximum pay scale for the jobs assigned to that grade.  Calculation of the midpoints
for each salary range is typically based on the aggregate of the survey weighted
averages. We developed three range structures.  The first two were developed based on
the survey data cuts of Denver/Boulder and Total Responses (all Colorado). The third
structure was developed looking at Total Responses and applying a geographic pay
differential based on Silverthorne, Colorado.  Data from Economic Research Institute
reports that pay levels are approximately 3% higher in Silverthorne as compared to the
rest of Colorado.

 Review Cost to Implement
The proposed structure compares employee pay rates to the salary ranges. The cost to
increase current pay rates of employees who are below the minimum of the proposed
salary range will cost approximately $5,062. This reflects a structure developed using
the Total Responses market data line.

Summary
Compensation is a fluid and dynamic part of human resources. We recommend that every
organization establish a clearly defined total compensation strategy and philosophy which
will guide the design and direction of the plan.

While salary data is a tool for helping set pay practices, operational excellence is usually
driven by many variables.  Balancing a variety of factors, including performance and
organizational goals, along with market analysis are part of the salary decision process.

We appreciate the opportunity to support your efforts in maintaining a competitive salary
structure.  Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns about this project.



Based on Total Responses
Percent 2016

Salary Between Range Range Range Range Market
Grade  Midpoints Minimum Midpoint Maximum Spread Average

(TOTAL)

sub 10 $21,900 $26,240 $30,580 40% $26,235
$10.53 $12.62 $14.70

clerk 20 16% $25,400 $30,525 $35,650 40% $30,522
$12.21 $14.68 $17.14

LA & LAT 30 23% $30,500 $37,400 $44,300 45% $37,037
$14.66 $17.98 $21.30

Prog 40 9% $33,200 $40,700 $48,200 45% $40,696
$15.96 $19.57 $23.17

Tech Mgr 50 31% $42,500 $53,150 $63,800 50% $53,170
$20.43 $25.55 $30.67

BL 60 18% $50,100 $62,600 $75,100 50% $62,554
$24.09 $30.10 $36.11

LD 70 $95,500 $124,150 $152,800 60% $124,164
$45.91 $59.69 $73.46

Total Responses plus geographic differential (+3% for Silverthorne,CO)
Percent 2016

Salary Between Range Range Range Range Market
Grade  Midpoints Minimum Midpoint Maximum Spread Average

(+3%) (TOTAL)

10 $22,500 $27,027 $31,554 40% $26,235
$10.82 $12.99 $15.17

20 16% $26,200 $31,441 $36,682 40% $30,522
$12.60 $15.12 $17.64

30 23% $31,400 $38,522 $45,644 45% $37,037
$15.10 $18.52 $21.94

40 9% $34,200 $41,921 $49,642 45% $40,696
$16.44 $20.15 $23.87



50 31% $43,800 $54,745 $65,689 50% $53,170
$21.06 $26.32 $31.58

60 18% $51,600 $64,478 $77,356 50% $62,554
$24.81 $31.00 $37.19

70 $98,400 $127,875 $157,349 60% $124,164
$47.31 $61.48 $75.65



Based on Denver/Boulder Responses
Percent 2016 Market

Salary Between Range Range Range Range Market Difference
Grade  Midpoints Minimum Midpoint Maximum Spread Average %

(DENVER)

10 $24,700 $29,600 $34,500 40% $29,584 12.76%
$11.88 $14.23 $16.59

20 10% $27,100 $32,570 $38,040 40% $32,569 6.71%
$13.03 $15.66 $18.29

30 16% $30,900 $37,840 $44,780 45% $37,838 2.16%
$14.86 $18.19 $21.53

40 9% $33,600 $41,200 $48,800 45% $41,183 1.20%
$16.15 $19.81 $23.46

50 38% $45,500 $56,900 $68,300 50% $56,887 6.99%
$21.88 $27.36 $32.84

60 15% $52,400 $65,500 $78,600 50% N/A N/A
$25.19 $31.49 $37.79

70 $103,800 $134,950 $166,100 60% $134,970 8.70%
$49.90 $64.88 $79.86





HR Task Sue Gen Libby
Hiring Employees

Go over job desc. Team Team team
Time depends on position and how
much it has changed.

Advertise job X
Collect Resumes X Some may be turned in at library
Work with applicants X
Develop hiring rubric X Sometimes done as a team
Hiring Committee X For branch positions. BL may help
Gets info to interviewers X
Check references X BL's check for subs
Informs all applicants X
Background checks X
Post talks with rejected X
Interviews: 30-45 minutes per person

Subs TEAM TEAM
10-20 minutes per person, two of
three managers interview

Other positions TEAM TEAM TEAM
Onboarding

Processes paperwork X X
Gen gathers paperwork for subs,
sue works on all

Fills out additional paperwork X
Creates personnel file X
Enters info into database X
Gets additional info if req'd X
Ensures all paperwork rec'd X
Opens a file in payroll X
Prepares time sheet X
Gets unique email for them X
Prepares welcome letter/email X
Re-sets passwords as req'd X

Benefits
Keeps track of benefit eligibility X
Calculates employee portions for payroll X
Discusses different plans w/emp X
Calculates & discuss cost w/emp X
Gets paperwork from employee X
Works with Insurance Co. X
Works with Employee re: 1st payment X
Retirement eligibility X
Annual notices sent X
Keep track of holiday usage/accrual X
Keep track of PTO X
Help employees who use all time X



Help employees with ins. Claims X
Get additional info to ins about claims X
Attend ins. Co. webinars X
Provide salary/work history to lenders X
Give emp info re: loans, garnishments X
Help emp. Process loan docs X
Work with broker(s) X
Negotiate contract with ins co X
Ensure contract compliance X
Annual paperwork for plans X
Paperwork for emp changes X
Process COBRA for reduced hours X
Manage workers' comp issues X
Compile information/paperwork X
Find new providers X
Get posters, etc X
Assist employee X
Open enrollment X
Recalculate new costs X
Inform employees X
Provide additional information X
Send reminders X
Collect paperwork, submit on time X

Payroll
Re-set passwords for pay stubs X
Look over payroll for accuracy X X X
Check for overtime X
Enter data into computer X
Keep up time chart for holidays X
Check readout before final submission X
Inform emp of holidays min 2x/year X
Address changes entered all dbs X
Fix errors (ex. PTO vs. Holiday) X
Work w/payroll co re: deductions X
Make sure anniversaries reflected X
Work w/payroll re: garnishments X

Behavior Issues
work w/branch librarian when problem X X X
help BL write growth plan X X X
work w/msec to ensure legal, fair X
help BL meet w/emp & deliver plan X X X
document interactions w/employees X X X



Employee Performance
Review employees X X X
Meet to discuss shared employees TEAM TEAM TEAM
Deliver reviews X X X
Get signed copies, file them X
Review emp responses, respond X May be done as a team
Suggest further training X X X
Write growth plans as needed X Sometimes done as a team
Bring emp issues to board as needed X
Get training for emp perf mgmt X
Change review documents as needed X May be done as a team

Employee Concerns
Payroll Questions X
Benefit Questions X
Concerns about other employees X X X Depends
Document concerns X X X Depends
Work with supervisors to increase skills X
Recommend MSEC Courses X
Look for underlying Issues X
Deal with unfounded concerns X

End of Employment
terminate emp for cause X usually with another present
Processes paperwork for all terms X
Contact attorneys as needed X
Process COBRA when employee leaves X
Make sure COBRA payments made X
Work w/former emp having COBRA issues X
Keep track of end of COBRA X
Find out why emp quit when no cause X
Help frmr emp get benefits entitled to X
Exit interviews X X X depends
Work w/payroll co X
Work w/unemployment agency X
Retrieve District property X
Decide whether/how to refill position TEAM TEAM TEAM
Help process retirement X
Inform retirement company X

Other
Read about upcoming HR issues X
Get training for big federal changes X
Submit handbooks for review X
Research and write new HR policies X
Solicit input from employees X
Talk to experts re: various issues X



HR duties that can be outsourced

1. Someone to help us pick out new insurance benefit plans for employees
2. Someone to help us with onboarding new employees and getting their personnel records

established
3. Someone to help us with benefit administration, workers comp (and payroll, since these

questions are often entertwined)
4. Someone to help us with “hotline” issues
5. Someone to process termination issues, COBRA, exit interviews, etc.

What the Payroll Company does

1. Keeps track of PTO, holiday, etc. used via database; Makes changes as required (ex. Employee
wanted to use holiday rather than PTO)

2. Maintains history of payroll via database
3. Calculates pay checks, determining deductions inc. taxes
4. Works with director regarding benefit deductions, then maintains them
5. Completes and submits quarterly and end of year tax reports for library
6. Completes W-2
7. At employee’s request, maintains tax records online
8. Submits pay stubs to employees electronically
9. Works with director to submit 1099s
10. Makes payments to Unemployment Insurance, Retirement plans, etc. each pay period
11. Submits direct deposits to employees’ checking accounts; gets manual checks to director
12. Works with director on end-of-employment check
13. Upon request may offer advice about tax hits (for example, retiring employee may elect to take

PTO over several weeks to avoid a higher tax bracket).
14. Conducts research when there is a problem or a question
15. Helps director with employee garnishments and loans from retirement funds



2016-04
RESOLUTION TO ADOPT BUDGET

(Pursuant to 29-1-108, CRS.)

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND AND
ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE CLEAR CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO,
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY, 2017, AND
ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2017.

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Clear Creek County Library District has appointed
a Budget Officer to prepare and submit a proposed budget to said governing body at the proper time; and

WHEREAS, the Budget Officer has submitted a proposed budget to this governing body on October 11th,
2016, for its consideration, and;

WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the law, said proposed
budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was held on
December 13, 2016, and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register any objections
to said proposed budget, and;

WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases were added to
the revenues or planned to be expended from reserves/fund balances so that the budget remains in
balance, as required by law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES of the CLEAR
CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT, Colorado:

Section 1. That estimated expenditures for each fund are as follows:
Library District General Fund $1,231,346

Section 2. That estimated revenues for each fund are as follows:
Library District General Fund $1,088,168

Section 3. That the budget as submitted, amended, and summarized by fund, hereby is approved and
adopted as the budget of the Clear Creek County Library District for the year stated above.

Section 4. That the budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the President of the Board of
Trustees of the Clear Creek County Library District and made a part of the public records of the District.

ADOPTED, this 13th day of December A.D., 2016.

Attest:

Lee Ann Cox, Interim President Elaine McWain

Kate Foy, Secretary Gwynne Ellen Stephenson

Vickie Colle, Treasurer Judy Caldwell



2016-05
RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY

(Pursuant to Section 29-1-108, C.R.S.)

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO THE VARIOUS FUNDS
AND SPENDING AGENCIES, IN THE AMOUNT AND FOR THE PURPOSE AS SET
FORTH BELOW, FOR THE CLEAR CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT,
COLORADO, FOR THE 2017 BUDGET YEAR.

WHEREAS, the Clear Creek County Library District has adopted the annual budget in
accordance with the Local Government Budget Law, on December 13, 2016, and;

WHEREAS, the Clear Creek County Library District has made provision therein for
revenues in an amount equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth
in said budget, and;

WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the revenues
and reserves or fund balances provided in the budget to and for the purposes described
below, thereby establishing a limitation on the expenditures for the operations of the
Clear Creek County Library District,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CLEAR CREEK COUNTY
LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO:

Section 1. That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenue of each
fund, to each fund, for the purposes stated:

GENERAL FUND:
Library District Operating Expenses $1,081,346
Library District Capital Expenses $150,000
Debt Service $0

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $1,231,346

ADOPTED THIS 13th day of December, A.D. 2016.

Lee Ann Cox, Interim President Elaine McWain

Kate Foy, Secretary Gwynne Ellen Stephenson

Vickie Colle, Treasurer Judy Caldwell



2016-06
RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES

(Pursuant to 39-5-128, CRS. and 39-1-111, CRS.)

A RESOLUTION LEVYING PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2017, TO HELP
DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT FOR THE CLEAR CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY
DISTRICT, COLORADO, FOR THE 2017 BUDGET YEAR.

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Clear Creek County Library District has adopted the
annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget Law, on December 13, 2016,
and;

WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for general operating
purposes from property tax revenue is $1,231,346 and;

WHEREAS, the 2016 valuation for assessment for the Clear Creek County Library District as
certified by the County Assessor(s) is $519,184,220.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE CLEAR
CREEK COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO:

Section 1. That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses of the Clear Creek
County Library District during the 2017 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of 2.000 mills
upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment of all taxable property within the Clear
Creek County Library District for the year 2017.

Section 5. That the Budget Officer is hereby authorized and directed to immediately certify to the
County Commissioners of Clear Creek County, Colorado, the mill levies for the Clear Creek
County Library District as hereinabove determined and set, but as recalculated as needed upon
receipt of the final (December) certification of valuation from the county assessor in order to
comply with any applicable revenue and other budgetary limits.

ADOPTED this 13th Day of December, A.D. 2016.

Attest:

Lee Ann Cox, Interim President Elaine McWain

Kate Foy, Secretary Gwynne Ellen Stephenson

Vickie Colle, Treasurer Judy Caldwell



Form DLG 70 (rev 7/08)  Page 1 of 4 

 County Tax Entity Code  DOLA LGID/SID  / 

CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES for NON-SCHOOL Governments 
 

TO:  County Commissioners1 of         , Colorado.

On behalf of the       , 
 (taxing entity)A  

the       
 (governing body)B 

of the       
 (local government)C 

$       
Hereby officially certifies the following mills 
to be levied against the taxing entity’s GROSS 
assessed valuation of:  (GROSSD assessed valuation, Line 2 of the Certification of Valuation Form DLG 57E)

$       

Note:  If the assessor certified a NET assessed valuation 
(AV) different than the GROSS AV due to a Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) AreaF the tax levies must be 
calculated using the NET AV.  The taxing entity’s total 
property tax revenue will be derived from the mill levy 
multiplied against the NET assessed valuation of:  

(NETG assessed valuation, Line 4 of the Certification of Valuation Form DLG 57) 

Submitted:        for budget/fiscal year      . 
(not later than Dec. 15) (mm/dd/yyyy)  (yyyy)  
 

 PURPOSE (see end notes for definitions and examples)  LEVY2  REVENUE2 

 1. General Operating ExpensesH        mills $        

 2. <Minus> Temporary General Property Tax Credit/ 
Temporary Mill Levy Rate ReductionI  <       > mills $ <       >

 SUBTOTAL FOR GENERAL OPERATING:        mills $        

 3. General Obligation Bonds and InterestJ         mills $        

 4. Contractual ObligationsK        mills $        

 5. Capital ExpendituresL        mills $        

 6. Refunds/AbatementsM        mills $        

7.  OtherN (specify):         mills $        

         mills $        

 TOTAL: [Sum of General Operating 
Subtotal and Lines  3 to 7 ]       mills $        

 
Contact person: 
(print)  

Daytime 
phone:  (       ) 

Signed:  Title:  
 
Include one copy of this tax entity’s completed form when filing the local government’s budget by January 31st, per 29-1-113 C.R.S., with the 
Division of Local Government (DLG), Room 521, 1313 Sherman Street, Denver, CO 80203.  Questions?  Call DLG at (303) 866-2156. 
                                                 
1 If the taxing entity’s boundaries include more than one county, you must certify the levies to each county.  Use a separate form 
for each county and certify the same levies uniformly to each county per Article X, Section 3 of the Colorado Constitution. 
2 Levies must be rounded to three decimal places and revenue must be calculated from the total NET assessed valuation (Line 4 of 
Form DLG57 on the County Assessor’s final certification of valuation). 

Sue
Typewritten Text
Clear Creek County

Sue
Typewritten Text
Clear Creek County Library District

Sue
Typewritten Text
Board of Trustees

Sue
Typewritten Text
Clear Creek County Library District

Sue
Typewritten Text
519,184,220

Sue
Typewritten Text
519,184,220



Form DLG 70 (rev 7/08)  Page 2 of 4 

CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES, continued 
 
 
THIS SECTION APPLIES TO TITLE 32, ARTICLE 1 SPECIAL DISTRICTS THAT LEVY TAXES 
FOR PAYMENT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (32-1-1603 C.R.S.).  Taxing entities that are 
Special Districts or Subdistricts of Special Districts must certify separate mill levies and revenues to the 
Board of County Commissioners, one each for the funding requirements of each debt (32-1-1603, C.R.S.)  
Use additional pages as necessary.  The Special District’s or Subdistrict’s total levies for general obligation 
bonds and total levies for contractual obligations should be recorded on Page 1, Lines 3 and 4 respectively.  
 
CERTIFY A SEPARATE MILL LEVY FOR EACH BOND OR CONTRACT: 
 
BONDSJ:  
1. Purpose of Issue:       

Series:        
Date of Issue:       
Coupon Rate:        
Maturity Date:       
Levy:        

 

Revenue:       
 
2. Purpose of Issue:        

Series:         
Date of Issue:        
Coupon Rate:         
Maturity Date:        
Levy:         

 

Revenue:        
 
CONTRACTSK: 
3. Purpose of Contract:       

Title:       
Date:       
Principal Amount:       
Maturity Date:       
Levy:       

 

Revenue:       
 
4. Purpose of Contract:        

Title:        
Date:        
Principal Amount:        
Maturity Date:        
Levy:        

 

Revenue:        
 

Use multiple copies of this page as necessary to separately report all bond and contractual obligations per 32-1-1603, C.R.S. 
 



Form DLG 70 (rev 7/08)  Page 3 of 4 

Notes: 
                                                 
A Taxing Entity—A jurisdiction authorized by law to impose ad valorem property taxes on taxable property 
located within its territorial limits (please see notes B, C, and H below).  For purposes of the DLG 70 only, a 
taxing entity is also a geographic area formerly located within a taxing entity’s boundaries for which the county 
assessor certifies a valuation for assessment and which is responsible for payment of its share until retirement of 
financial obligations incurred by the taxing entity when the area was part of the taxing entity.  For example: an 
area of excluded property formerly within a special district with outstanding general obligation debt at the time of 
the exclusion or the area located within the former boundaries of a dissolved district whose outstanding general 
obligation debt service is administered by another local governmentC. 
 
B Governing Body—The board of county commissioners, the city council, the board of trustees, the board of 
directors, or the board of any other entity that is responsible for the certification of the taxing entity’s mill levy.  
For example:  the board of county commissioners is the governing board ex officio of a county public 
improvement district (PID); the board of a water and sanitation district constitutes ex officio the board of directors 
of the water subdistrict.  
 
C Local Government - For purposes of this line on Page 1of the DLG 70, the local government is the political 
subdivision under whose authority and within whose boundaries the taxing entity was created.  The local 
government is authorized to levy property taxes on behalf of the taxing entity.  For example, for the purposes of 
this form:   

1. a municipality is both the local government and the taxing entity when levying its own levy for its entire 
jurisdiction; 

2. a city is the local government when levying a tax on behalf of a business improvement district (BID) 
taxing entity which it created and whose city council is the BID board;  

3. a fire district is the local government if it created a subdistrict, the taxing entity, on whose behalf the fire 
district levies property taxes. 

4. a town is the local government when it provides the service for a dissolved water district and the town 
board serves as the board of a dissolved water district, the taxing entity, for the purpose of certifying a 
levy for the annual debt service on outstanding obligations.  

 
D GROSS Assessed Value - There will be a difference between gross assessed valuation and net assessed 
valuation reported by the county assessor only if there is a “tax increment financing” entity (see below), such as a 
downtown development authority or an urban renewal authority, within the boundaries of the taxing entity.  The 
board of county commissioners certifies each taxing entity’s total mills upon the taxing entity’s Gross Assessed 
Value found on Line 2 of Form DLG 57.   
 
E Certification of Valuation by County Assessor, Form DLG 57 - The county assessor(s) uses this form (or one 
similar) to provide valuation for assessment information to a taxing entity.  The county assessor must provide this 
certification no later than August 25th each year and may amend it, one time, prior to December 10th. 
 
F TIF Area—A downtown development authority (DDA) or urban renewal authority (URA), may form plan 
areas that use “tax increment financing” to derive revenue from increases in assessed valuation (gross minus net, 
Form DLG 57 Line 3) attributed to the activities/improvements within the plan area.  The DDA or URA receives 
the differential revenue of each overlapping taxing entity’s mill levy applied against the taxing entity’s gross 
assessed value after subtracting the taxing entity’s revenues derived from its mill levy applied against the net 
assessed value. 
 
G NET Assessed Value—The total taxable assessed valuation from which the taxing entity will derive revenues 
for its uses.  It is found on Line 4 of Form DLG 57. 
 
H General Operating Expenses (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 1)—The levy and accompanying revenue reported on 
Line 1 is for general operations and includes, in aggregate, all levies for and revenues raised by a taxing entity for 
purposes not lawfully exempted and detailed in Lines 3 through 7 on Page 1 of the DLG 70.  For example:  a fire 
pension levy is included in general operating expenses, unless the pension is voter-approved, if voter-approved, 
use Line 7 (Other). 
 



Form DLG 70 (rev 7/08)  Page 4 of 4 

                                                                                                                                                                         
I Temporary Tax Credit for Operations (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 2)—The Temporary General Property Tax 
Credit/ Temporary Mill Levy Rate Reduction of 39-1-111.5, C.R.S. may be applied to the taxing entity’s levy for 
general operations to effect refunds.  Temporary Tax Credits (TTCs) are not necessary for other types of levies 
(non-general operations) certified on this form because these levies are adjusted from year to year as specified by 
the provisions of any contract or schedule of payments established for the payment of any obligation incurred by 
the taxing entity per 29-1-301(1.7), C.R.S., or they are certified as authorized at election per 29-1-302(2)(b), 
C.R.S. 
 
J General Obligation Bonds and Interest (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 3)—Enter on this line the total levy required to 
pay the annual debt service of all general obligation bonds.  Per 29-1-301(1.7) C.R.S., the amount of revenue 
levied for this purpose cannot be greater than the amount of revenue required for such purpose as specified by the 
provisions of any contract or schedule of payments.  Title 32, Article 1 Special districts and subdistricts must 
complete Page 2 of the DLG 70.   
 
K Contractual Obligation (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 4)—If repayment of a contractual obligation with property tax 
has been approved at election and it is not a general obligation bond (shown on Line 3), the mill levy is entered on 
this line.  Per 29-1-301(1.7) C.R.S., the amount of revenue levied for this purpose cannot be greater than the 
amount of revenue required for such purpose as specified by the provisions of any contract or schedule of 
payments.   
 
L Capital Expenditures (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 5)—These revenues are not subject to the statutory property tax 
revenue limit if they are approved by counties and municipalities through public hearings pursuant to 29-1-
301(1.2) C.R.S. and for special districts through approval from the Division of Local Government pursuant to 29-
1-302(1.5) C.R.S. or for any taxing entity if approved at election.  Only levies approved by these methods should 
be entered on Line 5. 
 
M Refunds/Abatements (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 6)—The county assessor reports on the Certification of Valuation 
(DLG 57 Line 11) the amount of revenue from property tax that the local government did not receive in the prior 
year because taxpayers were given refunds for taxes they had paid or they were given abatements for taxes 
originally charged to them due to errors made in their property valuation.  The local government was due the tax 
revenue and would have collected it through an adjusted mill levy if the valuation errors had not occurred. Since 
the government was due the revenue, it may levy, in the subsequent year, a mill to collect the refund/abatement 
revenue.  An abatement/refund mill levy may generate revenues up to, but not exceeding, the refund/abatement 
amount from Form DLG 57 Line 11.  
  

1. Please Note:  If the taxing entity is in more than one county, as with all levies, the abatement levy must be 
uniform throughout the entity’s boundaries and certified the same to each county.  To calculate the 
abatement/refund levy for a taxing entity that is located in more than one county, first total the 
abatement/refund amounts reported by each county assessor, then divide by the taxing entity’s total net 
assessed value, then multiply by 1,000 and round down to the nearest three decimals to prevent levying 
for more revenue than was abated/refunded.  This results in an abatement/refund mill levy that will be 
uniformly certified to all of the counties in which the taxing entity is located even though the 
abatement/refund did not occur in all the counties. 

 
N Other (DLG 70 Page 1 Line 7)—Report other levies and revenue not subject to 29-1-301 C.R.S. that were not 
reported above.  For example: a levy for the purposes of television relay or translator facilities as specified in 
sections 29-7-101, 29-7-102, and 29-7-105 and 32-1-1005 (1) (a), C.R.S.; a voter-approved fire pension levy; a 
levy for special purposes such as developmental disabilities, open space, etc.   


	01-DRAFT  2016-10-11 DLB Minutes(5).pdf (p.1-3)
	2-2016-12 DLB Financial Report.pdf (p.4-8)
	2a-2016-12 DLB Financial Report.pdf (p.9-15)
	3-Public Participation Policy.pdf (p.16)
	4-EmployeeHandbook 2015-08-12 Draft 3.pdf (p.17-57)
	5-Budget Narrative 2017.pdf (p.58-60)
	6-Budget 2017 Draft 2.pdf (p.61-78)
	7-2016 Clear Creek County Library Compensation Methodology Report.pdf (p.79-81)
	8-MSEC Ranges.pdf (p.82-85)
	9-HR CHART.pdf (p.86-88)
	10-HR duties that can be outsourced.pdf (p.89)
	11-Resolution 2016-04 (adopt).pdf (p.90)
	12-Resolution 2016-05 (appropriate).pdf (p.91)
	13-Resolution 2016-06 (mill levy).pdf (p.92)

